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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2008, or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(dy ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period for to
Commission file numbeR-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

California 94-3025618
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(hefAct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefAct:
None
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a walbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c06#turities Act.
YesO No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act.
YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by SewtiB or 15(d) of the Act during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegmt was required to file such reports), anch@® been subject to such filing requirements
for the past 90 days.

YesXI No[O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquigletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10K




Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “large accelerated filard “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingngpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Fildd Accelerated Filex]
Non Accelerated FileO Smaller Reporting Compariy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
YesO No

The aggregate market value of voting stock heldday-affiliates of the Registrant was approximat&2®1,230,000 as of November
25, 2007, the last business day of the registrant'st recently completed second fiscal quarterdapon the closing sales price on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market reported for such d&teares of Common Stock held by each officer arettbr and by each person w
owns 10% or more of the outstanding Common Stoele lheen excluded from such calculation in that querlsons may be deemed to be
affiliates. This determination of affiliate statissnot necessarily a conclusive determination fbeopurposes.

As of July 18, 2008, there were 26,164,653 shaf€ommon Stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy stant relating to its October 2008 Annual Meetingsbreholders, which statement
will be filed not later than 120 days after the erfidhe fiscal year covered by this report, aremorated by reference in Part Il hereof.
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PART |
Item 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statementsimithe meaning of Section 21E of the Securitieshiaxnge Act of 1934. Words
such as “projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intexicand “assumes” and similar expressions are uséatentify forward-looking statements.
These statements are made based upon current @xpestand projections about our business and gggms made by our management and
are not guarantees of future performance, nor dasgsame any obligation to update such forward-lupktatements after the daités report is
filed. Our actual results could differ materialtpin those projected in the forward-looking statethéor many reasons, including the risk
factors listed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and tleetors discussed below.

General

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aittemperature-activated and
other specialty polymer products for a varietyadd products, agricultural products, and licensadner applications. The Company’s
proprietary polymer technology is the foundatiomd @ key differentiating advantage, upon which leandas built its business.

On December 1, 2006, Landec sold its direct mangedind sales seed company, Fielder's Choice D{tE€D”), which included the
Fielder’s Choice Direc? and Heartland Hybri® brands, to American Seeds, Inc., a wholly ownedislidgry of Monsanto Company
(“Monsanto”). Subsequent to the sale of FCD, Lanu®e has three core businesses - Food Productsdlegly, Commaodity Trading and
Technology Licensing which are described belowaRaial information concerning the industry segmémtsvhich the Company reported its
operations during fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 20@88mmarized in Note 14 to the Consolidated Firz8tatements.

Our Food Products Technology business is operatedgh a subsidiary, Apio, Inc. (“Apio”), and combs our proprietary food
packaging technology with the capabilities of géanational food supplier and value-added producegssor. Value-added processing uses
Landec’s proprietary BreatheWay® packaging techgwto package produce that is processed by wasaitjin some cases cutting and
mixing, resulting in packaged produce that achieneseased shelf life and reduced shrink (wastd)ediminates the need for ice during
distribution.

Our Commodity Trading business is operated throgi, Inc. and combines Apio’s export company, E&lTrading Company
(“Cal-Ex") with Apio’s domestic buy-sell commodityusiness that purchases and sells whole fruit agdtable products to Asia and
domestically to Wal-Mart.

Our Technology Licensing business includes thenBagg of proprietary Intellicoat® seed coating tealogy which we have licensed
to Monsanto and our Intelimer polymer business libahses and/or supplies products outside of eadRProducts Technology business to
companies such as Air Products and Chemicals(1Ao.Products”) and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”).

The Company's core polymer products are based qratented proprietary Intelimer® polymers, whidffed from other polymers in
that they can be customized to abruptly change gsisical characteristics when heated or cooleolijh a pre-set temperature switch. For
instance, Intelimer polymers can change withinrtireye of one or two degrees Celsius from a nonsidhetate to a highly tacky, adhesive
state; from an impermeable state to a highly pebheestate; or from a solid state to a viscous tetate. These abrupt changes are repeatedly
reversible and can be tailored by Landec to octapecific temperatures, thereby offering substdiebmpetitive advantages in the Company's
target markets.

The Company was incorporated in California on Oetd, 1986. The Company completed its initial pubffering in 1996 and is
listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under sgnbol “LNDC”.
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Technology Overview

Polymers are important and versatile materials danrmany of the products of modern life. Certaitymers, such as cellulose and
natural rubber, occur in nature. Man-made polynresteide nylon fibers used in carpeting and clothic@atings used in paints and finishes,
plastics such as polyethylene, and elastomersinssastomobile tires and latex gloves. Historicalynthetic polymers have been designed and
developed primarily for improved mechanical andtie properties, such as strength and the abdityithstand high temperatures.
Improvements in these and other properties anddbe of manufacturing of synthetic polymers halenald these materials to replace wood,
metal and natural fibers in many applications diierlast 50 years. More recently, scientists haceded their efforts on identifying and
developing sophisticated polymers with novel préipsrfor a variety of commercial applications.

Landec's Intelimer polymers are a proprietary ctdss/nthetic polymeric materials that respondetmperature changes in a
controllable, predictable way. Typically, polymemdually change in adhesion, permeability andogiyg over broad temperature ranges.
Landec's Intelimer materials, in contrast, can ésighed to exhibit abrupt changes in permeabéitfhesion and/or viscosity over temperature
ranges as narrow as’ I to 2° C. These changes can be designed to occur avedjalbw temperatures (OC to 100° C) that are relatively
easy to maintain in industrial and commercial emwinentsFigure lillustrates the effect of temperature on Intelimeaterials as compared to
typical polymers.

Effect of Tamparaiure on Intelimar Mafteriais va. Typical Polymars

Trelimser Mmienials

Change in

Froperties Typicad Polymiees

Pra-Set
Temperature Switch

Lo Temperature High

Fgure |

Landec's proprietary polymer technology is basetherstructure and phase behavior of Intelimer ria$e The abrupt thermal
transitions of specific Intelimer materials areiagkd through the controlled use of hydrocarboe sithins that are attached to a polymer
backbone. Below a pre-determined switch temperatheepolymer’s side chains align through weak dgtlobic interactions resulting in a
crystalline structure. When this side chain cry&table polymer is heated to, or above, this swtehperature, these interactions are disrupted
and the polymer is transformed into an amorphoisspus state. Because this transformation invadveBysical and not a chemical change,
process is repeatedly reversible. Landec can sgidlymer switch temperature anywhere betweg@@o 100° C by varying the length of the
side chains. The reversible transitions betweestaliyne and amorphous states are illustratdeignre 2below.
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Side chain crystallizable polymers were first disered by academic researchers in the mid-1950&s& polymers were initially
considered to be merely of scientific curiositynfra polymer physics perspective, and, to the Corip&mowledge, no significant commercial
applications were pursued. In the mid-1980's, [y Btewart, the Company's founder, became interéstine idea of using the temperature-
activated permeability properties of these polymerdeliver various materials such as catalystspsticides. After forming Landec in 1986,
Dr. Stewart subsequently discovered broader uftitthese polymers. After several years of baséearch, commercial development efforts
began in the early 1990's, resulting in initialguots in mid-1994.

Landec's Intelimer materials are generally syn#tezsirom long side-chain acrylic monomers thatdenéved primarily from natural
materials such as coconut and palm oils that gielyhpurified and designed to be manufactured esoveoally through known synthetic
processes. These acrylic-monomer raw materialharepolymerized by Landec leading to many diffeséde-chain crystallizable polymers
whose properties vary depending upon the initiglemials and the synthetic process. Intelimer makeian be made into many different forms,
including films, coatings, microcapsules and diseferms.

Description of Core Business

Landec patrticipates in three core business segmieatsl Products Technology, Commaodity Trading aedhhology Licensing.

Landec Corporation

Intelimer® Technology
Food Products Commodity Technology Licensing
Technology Trading




Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intefilnased BreatheWay membranes in 1996 for useifrékh-cut produce
packaging market, one of the fastest growing sedgriarthe produce industry. Landec’s proprietarg&@heWay packaging technology when
combined with fresh-cut or whole produce resultpackaged produce with increased shelf life andeed shrink (waste) without the need for
ice during distribution. The resulting products egterred to as “value-added” products. In 1998,@ompany acquired Apio, its then largest
customer in the Food Products Technology busined®ae of the nation’s leading marketers and pacikproduce and specialty packaged
fresh-cut vegetables. Apio utilizes state-of-thefiash-cut produce processing technology and yaamd access to specialty packaged produce
products which Apio distributes to the top U.Saiegrocery chains, major club stores and to tlogléervice industry. The Company’s
proprietary BreatheWay packaging business has tembined with Apio into a subsidiary that retains Apio, Inc. name. This vertical
integration within the Food Products Technologyibess gives Landec direct access to the large aowdng fresh-cut and whole produce
market.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Propriet8neatheWay Packaging Technology

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole produce cail sp discolor rapidly when packaged in convenébpackaging materials and are
therefore limited in their ability to be distributéroadly to markets. The Company’s proprietaryarteWay packaging technology extends the
shelf life and quality of fresh-cut and whole produ

Fresh-cut produce is pre-washed, cut and packagadarm that is ready to use by the consumer suttalis typically sold at premium
price levels compared to unpackaged produce. TtaeWoS. fresh produce market is estimated to @®%illion to $120 billion. Of this, U.S.
retail sales of fresh-cut produce is estimatectoprise 10% of the fresh produce market. The Compalieves that the growth of this market
has been driven by consumer demand and the wiblisgto pay for convenience, freshness, uniformitguabfety and nutritious produce
delivered to the point of sale. According to theetnational Fresh-Cut Produce Association, thehfias produce market is one of the highest
growth areas in retail grocery stores.

Although fresh-cut produce companies have had ssdoethe salad market, the industry has been wlaliversify into other fresh-cut
vegetables or fruits due primarily to limitatiomsfilm and plastic tray materials used to packagsH-cut produce. After harvesting, vegetables
and fruit continue to respire, consuming oxygen @atelasing carbon dioxide. Too much or too littkygen can result in premature spoilage
decay and, in some cases, promote the growth agbornganisms that jeopardize inherent food safepnwentional packaging films used tod
such as polyethylene and polypropylene, can be mittienodest permeability to oxygen and carbon iexbut often do not provide the
optimal atmosphere for the produce. Shortcomingafentional packaging materials have not sigaifity hindered the growth in the fresh-
cut salad market because lettuce, unlike many abtet and fruit, has low respiration requirements.

The respiration rate of produce varies from vedetédy-vegetable and from fruit-to-fruit. The chaltge facing the industry is to
develop packaging for the high respiring, high ezsdund shelf life sensitive vegetable and fruit ,re&skThe Company believes that today’s
conventional packaging films face numerous chaksrig adapting to meet the diversification of putisegetables and fruit evolving in the
industry without compromising shelf life and proéuguality. To mirror the growth experienced in thesh-cut salad market, the markets for
high respiring vegetables and fruit such as braccalliflower, asparagus, papayas, bananas amig$bevill require a more versatile and
sophisticated packaging solution for which the Camps BreatheWay packaging technology was developed

The respiration rate of produce also varies withgerature. As temperature increases, produce dnerspires at a higher rate,
which speeds up the aging process, resulting irntesed shelf life and increased potential for desgypilage, and loss of texture and
dehydration. As produce is transported from thegssing plant through the refrigerated distributibain to foodservice locations, retail
grocery stores and club stores, and finally toultienate consumer, temperatures can fluctuate fsgmitly. Therefore, temperature control is a
constant challenge in preserving the quality olireut and whole produce — a challenge for whiehdarrent packaging films can
compensate. The Company believes that its temperadgponsive BreatheWay packagitigchnology is well suited to the challenges of the
produce distribution process.




Using its Intelimer polymer technology, Landec Haseloped packaging technology that it believesest®s many of the
shortcomings of conventional packaging materialsadmbrane is applied over a small cutout secticemasperture of a flexible film bag or
plastic tray. This highly permeable “window” actsthe mechanism to provide the majority of thetgassmission requirements for the entire
package. These membranes are designed to proveteghincipal benefits:

« High PermeabilityLandec's BreatheWay packaging technolsggesigned to permit transmission of oxygen amtlaradioxide at 30
times the rate of conventional packaging films. Twempany believes that these higher permeabilitglgewill facilitate the packagin
diversity required to market many types of freshand whole produce.

» Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Permibgh BreatheWay packagingan be tailored with carbon dioxide to oxygen
transfer ratios ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 and setebt transmit oxygen and carbon dioxide at optimates to sustain the quality and
shelf life of packaged produce.

« Temperature Responsivendsandec has developed breathable membranes thakeadesigned to increase or decrease permeability i
response to environmental temperature changesCohgany has developed packaging that respondghehodxygen requirements
elevated temperatures but is also reversible, efualns to its original state as temperatures declihe temperature responsiveness of
these membranes allows ice to be removed fromigtelaition system which results in numerous beaefihese benefits include (1
substantial decrease in freight cost, (2) redutdaf contaminated produce because ice can beiarcaf micro organisms, (3) the
elimination of expensive waxed cartons that cateotecycled, and (4) the potential decrease in weldted accidents due to melted
ice.

Landec believes that growth of the overall produmagket will be driven by the increasing demandtfer convenience of fresh-cut
produce. This demand will in turn require packagimat facilitates the quality and shelf life of duwe transported to fresh-cut distributors in
bulk and pallet quantities. The Company believes itnthe future its BreatheWay packaging technologyll be useful for packaging a diver
variety of fresh-cut and whole produce productgeRiial opportunities for using Landsdechnology outside of the produce market exisui
flowers and in other food products.

Landec is working with leaders in the club stoetail grocery chain and foodservice markets. Thegany believes it will have
growth opportunities for the next several yearstlgh new customers and products in the United Stat@ansion of its existing customer
relationships, and through export and shipmengpetialty packaged produce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packaging threetected qualified contract manufacturers. Intamdto using BreatheWay
packaging for its value-added produce businessCtirepany markets and sells BreatheWay packagiregttiirto food distributors.

The Business: Food Products Technology

Our Food Products Technology business, operatedghrour Apio subsidiary, had revenues of approteigas171 million for the
fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, $156 million faz ffscal year ended May 27, 2007 and $137 millmntlie fiscal year ended May 28, 2006.

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary Imesis surrounds specialty packaged fresh-cut antewhtue-added processed
products that are washed and packaged in our petapyiBreatheWay packaging. The fresh-cut valuesdgtocessed products business
markets a variety of fresh-cut and whole vegetatulébe top retail grocery chains, club stores fad service suppliers. During the fiscal year
ended May 25, 2008, Apio shipped nearly ninetedliomicartons of produce to leading supermarketditets, wholesalers, foodservice
suppliers and club stores throughout North Amemecemarily in the United States.

There are four major distinguishing characteristitépio that provide competitive advantages infloed Products Technology
market:




» Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselher of fresh-cut and whole value-added prodiids.
focused on selling products under its Eat Smarg@trand other brands for its fresh-cut and wholeesadded products. As retail
grocery and club store chains consolidate, Apige$ positioned as a single source of a broad rarfigeeoducts.

» Reduced Farming Risks:Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownépsbf farmland, and instead, contracts with growfers
produce. The year-round sourcing of produce isyackenponent to the fresh-cut and whole value-agtedessing business.

« Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly ginogvfresh-cut and whole value-added produce busines
Apio’s 96,000 square foot value-added processiagtplvhich was expanded in fiscal year 2007 fron®80 square feet, is automated
with state-of-the-art vegetable processing equigmértually all of Apio’s value-added products lige Apio’s proprietary
BreatheWay packagingechnology. Apio’s strategy is to operate one largetral processing facility in one of Californidésgest,
lowest cost growing regions (Santa Maria Valley) ase packaging technology to allow for the natimiendelivery of fresh produce
products.

« Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagiteghnology, is introducing on
average fifteen new value-added products each Jease new product offerings range from variousssizf fresh-cut bagged
products, to vegetable trays, to whole produceetgetable salads and snack packs. During theWasteé months, Apio has introduc
20 new products.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division (fomgeknown as Apio Tech) in 2005 to advance the saleBreatheWay packagi
technology for shelfife sensitive vegetables and fruit. The technolatgo includes unique packaging solutions for poedin large packag
including shipping and pallet-sized containers.

Apio Packaging's first program has concentratetb@manas and was formally consummated when Apigezhtato an agreement to
supply Chiquita Brands International, Inc. (“Chig) with its proprietary banana packaging techgglon a worldwide basis for the ripening,
conservation and shelf-life extension of bananasnfast applications on an exclusive basis and tleercapplications on a non-exclusive basis.
In addition, Apio provides Chiquita with ongoingsearch and development and process technology guippthe BreatheWay membranes .
bags, and technical service support throughouttilseomer chain in order to assist in the develograed market acceptance of the technoli

For its part, Chiquita provides marketing, disttibn and retail sales support for Chiquita® banaswd worldwide in BreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Citégmust meet quarterly minimum purchase threshold®reatheWay banana packages.

The initial market focus for the BreatheWay banpaekaging technology using Chiquita bananas has t@amercial outlets that
normally do not sell bananas because of their salf-life - outlets such as quick serve restaigrazonvenience stores and coffee chain
outlets. Chiquita is currently developing packagilegigns for bananas packaged with Landec’s Bréé&lgeechnology for sale in retail
grocery chains.

The Company recently expanded the use of its Bedd#ty technology to avocados under an expandedsiitgagreement with
Chiquita. Commercial sales of avocados into the feervice industry recently began.

The Company’s specialty packaging for case linedpcts reduces freight expense up to 50% for ecepia@duce commodities by
eliminating the weight and space consumed by icaddition to reducing the cost of freight, the oswal of ice from the distribution system
offers additional benefits as outlined above.

Product enhancements in the fresh-cut vegetat#anitiude fresh-cut vegetable trays designed thk li&e they were freshly made in
the retail grocery store or at home. The rectandtdg design is convenient for storage in consghrefrigerators and expands the Company’s
wide-ranging vegetable tray line.




In May 2007, Apio entered into an 18-month researuth development agreement with Natick Soldier Rese Development &
Engineering Center, a branch of the U.S. Militaoydevelop commercial uses for Landec’s BreatheW#kaging technology within the U.S.
Military by significantly increasing the shelf lifgf produce for overseas shipments.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of
Monsanto, to develop novel broccoli and cauliflowerducts for the exclusive sale by Apio in the thokmerican market. These novel
products will be packaged in Landec’s proprietargd@heWay packaging and will be sold to retail grgachains, club stores and the food
service industry. Field trials for the initial tatgvarieties are expected to being in the Fall0ff&

In addition, the Company has commercialized newesliof fresh cut vegetable side dishes, vegetalddsand vegetable snacks.
Commodity Trading Business

Commodity Trading revenues consist of revenuesrgéee from the purchase and sale of primarily witol@modity fruit and
vegetable products to Asia through Apio’s expormpany, Cal-Ex and from the purchase and sale ofetmmmodity fruit and vegetable
products domestically to Wal-Mart. The Commaoditading business is a buy/sell business that reaizesnmission-based margin in the 4-
6% range.

The Business: Commodity Trading

Commodity Trading had revenues of approximately B@on for the fiscal year ended May 25, 20080$8illion for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2007 and $58 million for the fiscadyended May 28, 2006.

Apio is uniquely positioned to benefit from the gith in export sales to Asia and Europe over the degade with Cal-Ex. Through
Cal-Ex, Apio is currently one of the largest U.8perters of broccoli to Asia and is selling itsless products to Asia using proprietary
BreatheWay packaging technology.

Technology Licensing Business
Seeds Business - Intellicoat Seed Coatings anddaAd

Landec Ag had revenues of approximately $5.4 mmilfior the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, $2.8iarilfor the fiscal year ended
May 27, 2007 and $34.1 million for the fiscal yeaded May 28, 2006. Revenues for fiscal years 20082007 declined significantly from
fiscal year 2006 as a result of the sale of FCenember 1, 2006.

Following the sale of FCD on December 1, 2006, leen#lg’s strategy has been to work closely with Maonie to further develop its
patented, functional polymer coating technology ttzan be broadly sold and/or licensed to the seedsiry. In accordance with its license,
supply and R&D agreement with Monsanto, Landec Aguirrently focused on commercializing productstfier seed corn market and then
plans to broaden the technology to other seed apppcations.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intellic&sed Coatings

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsd@signed to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. These coatings areeatly available on hybrid corn, soybeans and rirddead corn used for seed production.
In fiscal year 2000, Landec Ag launched its firstnenercial product, Pollinator PI@& coatings, which is a coating application used ®dse
companies as a method for spreading pollinatidndeease yields and reduce risk in the productiomybrid seed corn. There are
approximately 650,000 acres of seed productiohéninited States and in 2008 Pollinator Plus wasl iy 25 seed companies on
approximately 17% of the seed corn production aicréise U.S.
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Beginning in 2003, Landec commercialized Early P@&rorn by selling the product directly to farmersotingh the Fielder's Choice
Direct® brand. This application allows farmers to planbinbld soils without the risk of chilling injurynd enables farmers to plant as much
as four weeks earlier than normal. With this calitgbfarmers are able to utilize labor and equiptn@ore efficiently, provide flexibility
during the critical planting period and avoid yiéddses caused by late planting. In 2008, five seedpanies offered Intellicoat on their hybrid
seed corn offerings.

Monsanto announced several months ago that itdiaeefl a new business called the Seed Treatmenm@ssivhich will allow
Monsanto to develop its seed treatment requirenietgmally. The concept of seed treatments iddogan insecticide or fungicide directly
onto the seed surface in order to protect the aeddhe seedling as it emerges. Landec’s Inteli@s®ed coating technology could be an
integral and proprietary part of Monsanto’s comngitrnto building a major position in seed treatmevasidwide by using Landec’s seed
coatings as a “carrier” of insecticides/fungicidgsich can be dispensed at the appropriate timedbase¢ime or soil temperature. During fiscal
year 2009 we will be focused on validating the ofskander’s coating technology for these applications.

Landec A¢- Sale of FCD

The acquisition price for FCD was $50 million irsbgpaid at the close. In addition, the Companydbalve earned up to an additic
$5 million based on FCD results for the twelve nisnénded May 31, 2007. None of the earn-out wasedaDuring the fiscal year 2007,
Landec recorded income from the sale, net of degpenses and bonuses, of $22.7 million. The indbwewas recorded is equal to the
difference between the fair value of FCD of $40lioml and its net book value, less direct sellingenses and bonuses. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the portif the $50 million of proceeds in excess offdievalue of FCD, or $10 million, will be
allocated to the technology license agreement ttestbelow and will be recognized as revenue ratabér the five year term of the
technology license agreement or $2 million per yesginning December 1, 2006. The fair value wasrd@hed by management with the
assistance of an independent appraiser.

On December 1, 2006, Landec also entered intoeayfear co-exclusive technology license and polysogply agreement (“the
Agreement”) with Monsanto for the use of Landecitellicoat polymer seed coating technology. Under the termbhefAgreement, Monsanto
will pay Landec Ag $2.6 million per year in exchanfgr (1) a co-exclusive right to use Landec'slliteat temperature activated seed coating
technology worldwide during the license period, tt8) right to be the exclusive global sales ancketarg agent for the Intellicoat seed coating
technology, and (3) the right to purchase the teldgy any time during the five year term of the Agment. Monsanto will also fund all
operating costs, including all Intellicoatsearch and development, product development amdaaplacement capital costs during the five year
agreement period. For the fiscal years ended Mag@38 and May 27, 2007, Landec recognized $5.Homiand $2.7 million, respectively, in
revenues and income from the Agreement.

The Agreement also provides for a fee payable tudkea Ag of $4 million if Monsanto elects to ternti@ghe agreement or $8 million
if Monsanto elects to purchase Landec Ag. If thecpase option is exercised before the fifth ansiagr of the Agreement, or if Monsanto
elects to terminate the Agreement, all annual Beciees and supply payments that have not beengbhahdec Ag will become due upon the
purchase. If Monsanto does not exercise its puecbption by the fifth anniversary of the Intellitoagreement, Landec Ag will receive the
termination fee and all rights to the Intellicoaeed coating technology will revert to Landec. Adangly, Landec Ag will receive minimum
guaranteed payments of $17 million for license f@s polymer supply payments over five years oridiilon in maximum payments if
Monsanto elects to purchase Landec Ag. The miniguaranteed payments and the deferred gain of $@mjer year described above will
result in Landec recognizing revenue and operatingme of $5.4 million per year for fiscal year®08ahrough 2011 and $2.7 million per year
for fiscal years 2007 and 2012. The incrementaihifon to be received in the event Monsanto exasithe purchase option has been deferrec
and will be recognized upon the exercise of thelpase option. The fair value of the purchase optias determined by management to be less
than the amount of the deferred revenue.

If Monsanto elects to purchase the stock of Lamsigca gain or loss on the sale of the stock of leen#élg will be recognized at the

time of purchase. If Monsanto exercises its purelmtion, Landec and Monsanto will enter into a ha@wg-term supply agreement in which
Landec will continue to be the exclusive supplieintellicoat polymer materials to Monsanto.
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Non-Seeds Business

We believe our technology has commercial potential wide range of industrial, consumer and medipallications beyond those
identified in our core businesses. For examplecove patented technology, Intelimer materials, lmamised to trigger catalysts, insecticides or
fragrances just by changing the temperature ofrttedimer materials or to activate adhesives thtoogntrolled temperature change. In orde
exploit these opportunities, we have entered inthwill enter into licensing and collaborative corate agreements for product development
and/or distribution in certain fields. However, givthe infrequency and unpredictability of when@uwempany may enter into any such
licensing and research and development arrangentbat€ompany is unable to disclose its financkgleetations in advance of entering into
such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development strategy ifocus on coatings, catalysts, resins, additaresadhesives in the polymer
materials market. During the product developmesgestthe Company identifies corporate partnersippart the ongoing development and
testing of these products, with the ultimate gddicensing the applications at the appropriatestim

Intelimer Polymer Systen

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful enelg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are ciyfeeing distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals B.Yirdugh a licensing agreement with Air
Products. The Company has also developed Intelimlgmer materials useful in enhancing the formualgibptions for various personal care
products. The rights to develop and sell Landeat@nt catalysts and personal care technologies geresed to Air Products in March 2006.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioatesty is focused on supplying Intelimer materialghdustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, and potentially color cosmelipsticks and hair care. The Company's partn@rPRoducts, is currently shipping products
to L'Oreal for use in lotions and creams. To d#te,sales of Landec materials used in L'Oreal petglbave not been material to the
Company'’s financials.

Medical Applications

On December 23, 2005, Landec entered into an exellisensing agreement with Aesthetic Sciencep@ation (“Aesthetic
Sciences”). Aesthetic Sciences paid Landec an npficense fee of $250,000 for the exclusive rigbtase Landec's Intelimer materials
technology for the development of dermal fillersridwide. Landec will also receive royalties on gae of products incorporating Landec’s
technology. In addition, the Company has receivetes of preferred stock valued at $1.8 millionahhas of May 25, 2008 represented a
19.9% ownership interest in Aesthetic Scienceghisttime, the Company is unable to predict themate outcome of the collaboration with
Aesthetic Sciences and the timing or amount ofrlutevenues, if any.

Sales and Marketing

Each of the Company’s core businesses are suppoytdddicated sales and marketing resources. Thg@ay intends to develop its
internal sales capacity as more products progoeartl commercialization and as business volumereggeographically During fiscal
years 2008, 2007 and 2006, sales to the Con’s top five customers accounted for approximat&9e450% and 46%, respectively, of its
revenues, with the top customer, Costco Wholesalp.Caccounting for approximately 20%, 21% and 168¢pectively, of the Company’s
revenues.
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Apio

Apio has 22 sales people, located in central Qalifoand throughout the U.S., supporting the exbosiness and the specialty
packaged value-added produce business.

Seasonality

The Company’s sales are moderately seasonal. teribe sale of FCD, Landec Ag revenues and profiie concentrated over a few
months during the spring planting season (genedaiting the Company’s third and fourth fiscal qeas}. In addition, the Food Products
Technology business can be heavily affected byosedsveather factors which have impacted quartesylts, such as high cost of sourcing
product in June/July 2006 and January 2007 duestmetage of essential value-added produce itehes Commodity Trading business also
typically recognized a much higher percentagesofétenues and profit during the first half of Laod fiscal year compared to the second |

Manufacturing and Processing
Food Products Technology Busint

The manufacturing process for the Company's pragsieBreatheWay packagingproducts is comprised of polymer manufacturing,
membrane manufacturing and label package convergitimird party toll manufacturer currently makedwally all of the polymers for the
BreatheWay packaging . Select outside contractamrgistly manufacture the breathable membranes andéc has transitioned virtually all of
the label package conversion to Apio’'s Guadalupditiato meet the increasing product demand anpréwide additional developmental
capabilities.

Apio processes virtually all of its fresh-cut valadded products in its state-of-the-art procesfaniity located in Guadalupe,
California. Cooling of produce is done through dhirarties and Apio Cooling LP, a separate constdlaubsidiary in which Apio has a 60%
ownership interest and is the general partner.

Technology Licensing Business

The Company performs its batch coating operatioresleased facility in Oxford, Indiana. This fatyilis being used to coat other seed
companies’ inbred seed corn with the Company'siffatibr Plus seed corn coatings.

The Company has a pilot manufacturing facilityridina to support process development, scale-ug@mdercialization of the
Company’s seed coating programs. This facilityize# a continuous coating process that has inatesessl coating capabilities by over tenfold
compared to the previous system using batch coaters

General

Many of the raw materials used in manufacturingaierof the Company’s products are currently puselafrom a single source,
including certain monomers used to synthesizeimtgl polymers and substrate materials for the Compamgathable membranes. Upon
manufacturing scale-up of seed coating operatitiesCompany may enter into alternative supply areaments. Although to date the Company
has not experienced difficulty acquiring materfalisthe manufacture of its products, no assuraacebe given that interruptions in supplies
will not occur in the future, that the Company viié able to obtain substitute vendors, or thaCtbepany will be able to procure comparable
materials at similar prices and terms within a osable time. Any such interruption of supply coblie a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s ability to manufacture and distributepiteducts and, consequently, could materially ahaesely affect the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition.
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Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmentiress on both existing and new applications dfitslimer technology.
Expenditures for research and development forifioalfyears ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 ang 28a 2006 were $3.3 million, $3.1
million and $3.0 million, respectively. Researchl aevelopment expenditures funded by corporateeemmental partners were $418,000 for
the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, $661,000 ferfiscal year ended May 27, 2007 and $100,000hfiscal year ended May 28, 2006. The
Company may continue to seek funds for applied rizdseresearch programs from U.S. government agsras well as from commercial
entities. The Company anticipates that it will goné to have significant research and developmeuerditures in order to maintain its
competitive position with a continuing flow of invative, high-quality products and services. As G\25, 2008, Landec had 25 employees
engaged in research and development with experianmalymer and analytical chemistry, product apggiion, product formulation, mechani
and chemical engineering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitive anddig@volving fields, and new developments are etgubto continue at a rapid
pace. Competition from large food packaging andcafjural companies is intense. In addition, theura of the Company's collaborative
arrangements and its technology licensing busimesgsresult in its corporate partners and licenbeesming competitors of the Company.
Many of these competitors have substantially grfatancial and technical resources and produaiioth marketing capabilities than the
Company, and many have substantially greater espesiin conducting field trials, obtaining regutgtapprovals and manufacturing and
marketing commercial products. There can be norasse that these competitors will not succeed ureliping alternative technologies and
products that are more effective, easier to udessrexpensive than those which have been or arg developed by the Company or that
would render the Company's technology and produlasslete and non-competitive.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Company's success depends in large part ability to obtain patents, maintain trade secretgmtion and operate without
infringing on the proprietary rights of third pasi The Company has had 35 U.S. patents issuediofi\®8 remain active as of May 25, 2008
with expiration dates ranging from 2010 to 2023e Tompany's issued patents include claims relaimgpmpositions, devices and use of a
class of temperature sensitive polymers that ekHibtinctive properties of permeability, adhes#od viscosity control. There can be no
assurance that any of the pending patent applitatidall be approved, that the Company will devedaldlitional proprietary products that are
patentable, that any patents issued to the Compaingrovide the Company with competitive advantage will not be challenged by any th
parties or that the patents of others will not prenthe commercialization of products incorporating Company's technology. Furthermore,
there can be no assurance that others will nopieiigently develop similar products, duplicate ahthe Company's products or design around
the Company's patents. Any of the foregoing resudtdd have a material adverse effect on the Cogipdnusiness, operating results and
financial condition.

The commercial success of the Company will alseddpin part, on its ability to avoid infringingteats issued to others. The
Company has received, and may in the future recéimm third parties, including some of its compmt$, notices claiming that it is infringing
third party patents or other proprietary rightshié Company were determined to be infringing dnindtparty patent, the Company could be
required to pay damages, alter its products orge®es, obtain licenses or cease certain activitiegldition, if patents are issued to others
which contain claims that compete or conflict witlose of the Company and such competing or coinffjatlaims are ultimately determined to
be valid, the Company may be required to pay dasjdgebtain licenses to these patents, to devaiaptain alternative technology or to
cease using such technology. If the Company isimredj@io obtain any licenses, there can be no asserthat the Company will be able to do so
on commercially favorable terms, if at all. The Guany's failure to obtain a license to any technplibgt it may require to commercialize its
products could have a material adverse impact eiCthimpany's business, operating results and fiaboandition.

Litigation, which could result in substantial cosighe Company, may also be necessary to enforcpatents issued or licensed to
the Company or to determine the scope and valafithird-party proprietary rights. If competitor§the Company prepare and file patent
applications in the United States that claim tedbgyalso claimed by the Company, the Company naasehio participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@ffice to determine priority of invention, whiawould result in substantial cost to and
diversion of effort by the Company, even if the mul outcome is favorable to the Company. Any ditidation or interference proceeding,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive anddonsuming and could subject the Company to signifitiabilities to third parties, require
disputed rights to be licensed from third partieseguire the Company to cease using such techpaod consequently, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, openasults and financial condition.
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In addition to patent protection, the Company a#di@s on trade secrets, proprietary know-how a&etiriological advances which the
Company seeks to protect, in part, by confidemgi@greements with its collaborators, employeesamsultants. There can be no assurance
that these agreements will not be breached, teaCtdmpany will have adequate remedies for any breaahat the Company's trade secrets
and proprietary know-how will not otherwise becokmewn or be independently discovered by others.

Employees

As of May 25, 2008, Landec had 118 full-time empley, of whom 54 were dedicated to research, dewelop manufacturing,
quality control and regulatory affairs and 64 weeglicated to sales, marketing and administratitigites. Landec intends to recruit additiol
personnel in connection with the development, mactufing and marketing of its products. None ofdetis employees is represented by a
union, and Landec believes its relationship wisheinployees is good.

Available Information

Landec’s Web site is http://www.landec.com. Landekes available free of charge its annual, quarert current reports, and any
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasgrabticable after electronically filing such repovtith the SEC. Information contained on
our website is not part of this Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Landec desires to take advantage of the “Safe Hapyovisions of the Private Securities Litigation Bafh Act of 1995 and of Secti
21E and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities Exchange®it934. Specifically, Landec wishes to alert ezadhat the following important factors,
as well as other factors including, without limitex, those described elsewhere in this report,ccouthe future affect, and in the past have
affected, Landec’s actual results and could caaselec’s results for future periods to differ mathyifrom those expressed in any forward-
looking statements made by or on behalf of Landandec assumes no obligation to update such foreatdng statements.

Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decline

In the past, our results of operations have fluetiaignificantly from quarter to quarter and axpexted to continue to fluctuate in the
future. Historically, Landec Ag has been the priynsource of these fluctuations, as its revenuespaniits were concentrated over a few
months during the spring planting season (genedaiting our third and fourth fiscal quarters). bidéion, Apio can be heavily affected by
seasonal and weather factors which have impactedegly results, such as the high cost of sourpiagluct in June/July 2006 and January
2007 due to a shortage of essential value-addetlipeditems. Our earnings may also fluctuate basemlioability to collect accounts
receivables from customers and note receivables §n@wers and on price fluctuations in the frespetables and fruits markets. Other factors

that affect our food and/or agricultural operatiomdude:

« the seasonality of our supplies;
» our ability to process produce during critical hest/periods;

« the timing and effects of ripening;
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« the degree of perishability;

« the effectiveness of worldwide distribution systems

» total worldwide industry volumes;

» the seasonality of consumer demand,;

« foreign currency fluctuations; and

» foreign importation restrictions and foreign pai risks.

As a result of these and other factors, we exmecbhtinue to experience fluctuations in quartepgrating results.
We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Nereducts in the Marketplace
Our success in generating significant sales ofpooducts will depend in part on the ability of uslaour partners and licensees to

achieve market acceptance of our new productseufohblogy. The extent to which, and rate at whisd achieve market acceptance and
penetration of our current and future productsfisnetion of many variables including, but not lted to:

« price;

« safety;

- efficacy;
o reliability;

e conversion costs;
« marketing and sales efforts; and
» general economic conditions affecting purchasirttepas.

We may not be able to develop and introduce newuirts and technologies in a timely manner or newdyets and technologies may
not gain market acceptance. We are in the eajestéproduct commercialization of certain Intelmi@sed specialty packaging, Intellicoat
seed coatings and other Intelimer polymer prodactsmany of our potential products are in develapmé&'e believe that our future growth
will depend in large part on our ability to develmpd market new products in our target marketsimmgéw markets. In particular, we expect
that our ability to compete effectively with exiggifood products, agricultural, industrial and noadlicompanies will depend substantially on
successfully developing, commercializing, achievimarket acceptance of and reducing the cost ofymiad our products. In addition,
commercial applications of our temperature switolymer technology are relatively new and evolvi@gur failure to develop new products or
the failure of our new products to achieve markeeptance would have a material adverse effectiobwsiness, results of operations and
financial condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketplace

Competitors may succeed in developing alternate@rnologies and products that are more effectasieeto use or less expensive
than those which have been or are being developed br that would render our technology and pretglobsolete and non-competitive. We
operate in highly competitive and rapidly evolviigds, and new developments are expected to aomtat a rapid pace. Competition from
large food products, agricultural, industrial anddical companies is expected to be intense. Irtiaddihe nature of our collaborative
arrangements may result in our corporate partmatdieensees becoming our competitors. Many ofdlusnpetitors have substantially greater
financial and technical resources and productiahraarketing capabilities than we do, and may habstantially greater experience in
conducting clinical and field trials, obtaining teégtory approvals and manufacturing and marketomroercial products.
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We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing in One Lation for Apio and May Have to Depend on Third P&$ to Manufacture Our
Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturing opeatat Apio’s facility in Guadalupe, California wisreduce our ability to sell our
products and would have a material adverse effedun financial results. Additionally, we may ndedconsider seeking collaborative
arrangements with other companies to manufactur@mrmducts. If we become dependent upon third gaftr the manufacture of our produ
our profit margins and our ability to develop aredivker those products on a timely basis may becedfe Failures by third parties may impair
our ability to deliver products on a timely basiglampair our competitive position. We may not béeao continue to successfully operate our
manufacturing operations at acceptable costs, adtieptable yields, and retain adequately trainesbpeel.

Our Dependence on Single-Source Suppliers and Ssr\Rroviders May Cause Disruption in Our OperatioBtiould Any Supplier Fail to
Deliver Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring materialsservices for the manufacture of our products onmvag not be able to obtain
substitute vendors. We may not be able to procomgparable materials at similar prices and termbiwia reasonable time. Several services
that are provided to Apio are obtained from a srglovider. Several of the raw materials we usaaoufacture our products are currently
purchased from a single source, including some mmems used to synthesize Intelimer polymers andtsatbsmaterials for our breathable
membrane products. Any interruption of our relasioip with single-source suppliers or service prexsdcould delay product shipments and
materially harm our business.

We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties, inclgdéome of our competitors, claiming infringementdoy products of patent and
other proprietary rights. Regardless of their megsponding to any such claim could be time-corisgnresult in costly litigation and require
us to enter royalty and licensing agreements wirialy not be offered or available on terms acceptables. If a successful claim is made
against us and we fail to develop or license atgubs technology, we could be required to alter puwducts or processes and our business,
results of operations or financial position coutdrbaterially adversely affected. Our success depinidrge part on our ability to obtain
patents, maintain trade secret protection and tgerighout infringing on the proprietary rightstbird parties. Any pending patent applicatic
we file may not be approved and we may not be abtkevelop additional proprietary products thatatentable. Any patents issued to us |
not provide us with competitive advantages or maglallenged by third parties. Patents held byrethey prevent the commercialization of
products incorporating our technology. Furthermothers may independently develop similar prodwhiglicate our products or design
around our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Ditey Impact Our Business

Our food packaging products are subject to requiatinder the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the “FaC). Under the FDC Act,
any substance that when used as intended may eddgdie expected to become, directly or indirealgomponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated amd additive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. We believe that food
packaging materials are generally not considered #alditives by the FDA because these productaarexpected to become components of
food under their expected conditions of use. Wesittat our breathable membrane product to be agaclaging material not subject to
regulation or approval by the FDA. We have not ek any communication from the FDA concerning brgathable membrane product. If
the FDA were to determine that our breathable mamdproducts are food additives, we may be reqairedbmit a food additive petition for
approval by the FDA. The food additive petition gess is lengthy, expensive and uncertain. A detextioin by the FDA that a food additive
petition is necessary would have a material adveffeet on our business, operating results andfish condition.

Federal, state and local regulations impose vagowgonmental controls on the use, storage, digehar disposal of toxic, volatile or
otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases used maiotime manufacturing processes. Our failure tarobthe use of, or to restrict adequately
the discharge of, hazardous substances under pasierure regulations could subject us to sult&hliability or could cause our
manufacturing operations to be suspended and chamgavironmental regulations may impose the rieeddditional capital equipment or
other requirements.
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Our agricultural operations are subject to a vardtenvironmental laws including, the Food Quaktyotection Act of 1966, the Clean
Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resource Consiionaand Recovery Act, the Federal Insecticide,dicide and Rodenticide Act, and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act. Compliance with these laws amthted regulations is an ongoing
process. Environmental concerns are, however, @mtén most agricultural operations, including thege conduct. Moreover, it is possible 1
future developments, such as increasingly stricirenmental laws and enforcement policies couldiltéa increased compliance costs.

The Company is subject to the Perishable Agricalt@ommodities Act (“PACA”) law. PACA regulates farade standards in the
fresh produce industry and governs all the prodsckd by Apio. Our failure to comply with the PAGAquirements could among other things,
result in civil penalties, suspension or revocatba license to sell produce, and in the mostgigte cases, criminal prosecution, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyMaause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfaréases in Our Cosi

Our Food Products business is subject to weathmtittons that affect commodity prices, crop yieldsd decisions by growers
regarding crops to be planted. Crop diseases ardleseonditions, particularly weather conditionstsas floods, droughts, frosts, windstorms,
earthquakes and hurricanes, may adversely affedujpply of vegetables and fruits used in our lassinwhich could reduce the sales volumes
and/or increase the unit production costs. Becatsgnificant portion of the costs are fixed andtcacted in advance of each operating year,
volume declines due to production interruptionsther factors could result in increases in unidpigiion costs which could result in
substantial losses and weaken our financial canditi

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses fotle Development

Our strategy for development, clinical and fieldtieg, manufacture, commercialization and marketomgsome of our current and
future products includes entering into variousadirations with corporate partners, licensees #mef® We are dependent on our corporate
partners to develop, test, manufacture and/or nhadwme of our products. Although we believe thatgartners in these collaborations have an
economic motivation to succeed in performing tloeintractual responsibilities, the amount and tinohgesources to be devoted to these
activities are not within our control. Our partneray not perform their obligations as expected emway not derive any additional revenue
from the arrangements. Our partners may not payadditional option or license fees to us or maydetelop, market or pay any royalty fees
related to products under the agreements. Moreswoerg of the collaborative agreements providettieggt may be terminated at the discretion
of the corporate partner, and some of the collab@agreements provide for termination under otfimumstances. Our partners may pursue
existing or alternative technologies in preferetaeur technology. Furthermore, we may not be &bleegotiate additional collaborative
arrangements in the future on acceptable ternas afl, and our collaborative arrangements maybeatuccessful.

Both Domestic and Foreign Government RegulationsrCldave an Adverse Effect on Our Business Operati

Our products and operations are subject to govantaheegulation in the United States and foreignrtdes. The manufacture of our
products is subject to periodic inspection by ratury authorities. We may not be able to obtairessary regulatory approvals on a timely
basis or at all. Delays in receipt of or failure¢geive approvals or loss of previously receivegravals would have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and resultsperations. Although we have no reason to belieaewe will not be able to comply with all
applicable regulations regarding the manufactucesate of our products and polymer materials, i@guis are always subject to change and
depend heavily on administrative interpretationd #re country in which the products are sold. Feithianges in regulations or interpretations
relating to matters such as safe working condititatsoratory and manufacturing practices, enviromalecontrols, and disposal of hazardot
potentially hazardous substances may adverselgtafte business.
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We are subject to USDA rules and regulations caringrthe safety of the food products handled andl lsp Apio, and the facilities in
which they are packed and processed. Failure tglyowith the applicable regulatory requirements,@mnong other things, result in:

« fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensij

« withdrawal of regulatory approvals,

» product recalls and product seizures, includiessation of manufacturing and sales,
e operating restrictions, and

e criminal prosecution.

We may be required to incur significant costs tmpty with the laws and regulations in the futureiehhmay have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results and ishicondition.

Our International Operations and Sales May ExposeicBusiness to Additional Risks

For the fiscal year ended May 25 , 2008, approxéfge80% of our total revenues were derived frondpiat sales to international
customers. A number of risks are inherent in iradamal transactions. International sales and diperamay be limited or disrupted by any of
the following:

« regulatory approval process,

« government controls,

« export license requirements,

« political instability,

e price controls,

» trade restrictions,

« changes in tariffs, or

« difficulties in staffing and managing internatiorgderations.

Foreign regulatory agencies have or may establistiyct standards different from those in the Uniégates, and any inability to
obtain foreign regulatory approvals on a timelyibasuld have a material adverse effect on ourmatitonal business, and our financial
condition and results of operations. While our fgnesales are currently priced in dollars, fluctolas$ in currency exchange rates may reduce
the demand for our products by increasing the pfaur products in the currency of the countriesvhich the products are sold. Regulatory,
geopolitical and other factors may adversely impagctoperations in the future or require us to rfyodur current business practices.

Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Custométay Adversely Affect Our Business

During fiscal year 2008, sales to our top five oostrs accounted for approximately 47% of our reespwith our largest customer,
Costco Wholesale Corporation, accounting for apipnately 20% of our revenues. We expect that, ferfireseeable future, a limited number
of customers may continue to account for a subisigutrtion of our net revenues. We may experiest@nges in the composition of our
customer base as we have experienced in the pasiowiot have long-term purchase agreements wjtlofaour customers. The reduction,
delay or cancellation of orders from one or morgomeustomers for any reason or the loss of onaane of our major customers could
materially and adversely affect our business, dpgyaesults and financial condition. In additigimce some of the products processed by Apio
at its Guadalupe, California facility are sole smmgt to its customers, our operating results coalddversely affected if one or more of our
major customers were to develop other sourcespglguOur current customers may not continue te@larders, orders by existing customers
may be canceled or may not continue at the leviglsewvious periods or we may not be able to obtaders from new customers.
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Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our Expostowd’roduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and salhefproducts we develop involve an inherent riskltEfgations of product liability.
any of our products were determined or allegedetodntaminated or defective or to have causedrafhhaccident to an end-customer, we
could incur substantial costs in responding to daings or litigation regarding our products and puwduct brand image could be materially
damaged. Either event may have a material advéfieset en our business, operating results and firrmondition. Although we have taken ¢
intend to continue to take what we believe are @iate precautions to minimize exposure to protlability claims, we may not be able to
avoid significant liability. We currently maintaproduct liability insurance. While we believe theverage and limits are consistent with
industry standards, our coverage may not be adequahay not continue to be available at an acbéptzost, if at all. A product liability
claim, product recall or other claim with respextihinsured liabilities or in excess of insuredbilities could have a material adverse effect on
our business, operating results and financial doordi

Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions

The following events may cause the market priceurfcommon stock to fluctuate significantly:

technological innovations applicable to our product

e our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestomeshe commercialization of our technology,
» our development of new products or the developroénew products by our competitors,

e new patents or changes in existing patents appdicalour products,

» our acquisition of new businesses or the salespadial of a part of our businesses,

« development of new collaborative arrangements byuiscompetitors or other parties,

« changes in government regulations applicable tdasiness,

« changes in investor perception of our business,

« fluctuations in our operating results and

« changes in the general market conditions in ounsirg.

These broad fluctuations may adversely affect thekpt price of our common stock.

Our Controlling Shareholders Exert Significant Influence over Corporate Events that May Conflict withthe Interests of Other
Shareholder

Our executive officers and directors and theitiatiés own or control approximately 12% of our coomstock (including options
exercisable within 60 days). Accordingly, theseagffs, directors and shareholders may have thiyatailexert significant influence over the
election of our Board of Directors, the approvahofendments to our articles and bylaws and theoappof mergers or other business
combination transactions requiring shareholder @ggdr This concentration of ownership may haveetiect of delaying or preventing a
merger or other business combination transactieen & the transaction or amendments would be beiaéfo our other shareholders. In
addition, our controlling shareholders may apprarendments to our articles or bylaws to implemetittakeover or management friendly
provisions that may not be beneficial to our otteareholders.

We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims &odts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bmess

We have been subject in the past, and may be ifuthee, to claims by employees based on allegatajrdiscrimination, negligence,
harassment and inadvertent employment of illedgahalor unlicensed personnel, and we may be sulojgatyment of workers' compensation
claims and other similar claims. We could incurstahtial costs and our management could spenchdisamt amount of time responding to
such complaints or litigation regarding employegrok, which may have a material adverse effectwrbasiness, operating results and
financial condition.
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We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if OnéMarre of Them Were to Leave, We Could ExperiencéfiDulties in Replacing Then
and Our Operating Results Could Suffer

The success of our business depends to a sigriiedent upon the continued service and performafieerelatively small number of
key senior management, technical, sales, and niagkeérsonnel. The loss of any of our key persommlld likely harm our business. In
addition, competition for senior level personnethAlinowledge and experience in our different linEbusiness is intense. If any of our key
personnel were to leave, we would need to devdistantial resources and management attention aceethem. As a result, management
attention may be diverted from managing our businasd we may need to pay higher compensatiomptace these employees.

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Rigithat Could Affect Your Rights

Our Board of Directors has the authority, withauttier approval of our shareholders, to fix thétigand preferences, and to issue
shares, of preferred stock. In November 1999, weeid and sold shares of Series A Convertible Reefe3tock and in October 2001 we issued
and sold shares of Series B Convertible PrefertedkSThe Series A Convertible Preferred Stock e@wverted into 1,666,670 shares of
Common Stock in November 2002 and the Series B &tible Preferred Stock was converted into 1,742 difares of Common Stock in May
2004.

The issuance of new shares of preferred stock duad the effect of making it more difficult fottlsrd party to acquire a majority of
our outstanding stock, and the holders of suchepredl stock could have voting, dividend, liquidatand other rights superior to those of
holders of our Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common &toc

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ComntockSince inception and do not expect to do shénforeseeable future. Any
dividends may be subject to preferential dividepagable on any preferred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially and Adverseljffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valud Goodwill is Higher than Fair Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount designategbadwill” that represents a portion of our assats our shareholders’ equity.
Goodwill arises when an acquirer pays more forsirtass than the fair value of the tangible and reggly measurable intangible net assets.
Under Statement of Financial Accounting StandardsIM2 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assétsheginning in fiscal year 2002, the
amortization of goodwill has been replaced witHiarpairment test” which requires that we compare fihir value of goodwill to its book
value at least annually and more frequently ifuwinstances indicate a possible impairment. If werdeine at any time in the future that the
book value of goodwill is higher than fair valueththe difference must be written-off, which comnidterially and adversely affect our
profitability.

1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ltem 2. Properties

As of May 25, 2008, the Company owned or leaseggnt@s in Menlo Park, Arroyo Grande and Guadal@adifornia; West
Lebanon and Oxford, Indiana.

These properties are described below:

Acres
Business of Lease
Location Segment Ownershif Facilities Land Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Technology Leased 10,400 square feet of office and laboratory — 12/31/09
Licensing space
West Lebanon, IN Technology Owned 4,000 square feet of warehouse and — —
Licensing manufacturing space
Oxford, IN Technology Leased 13,400 square feet of laboratory and — 6/30/09
Licensing manufacturing space
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Owned 142,000 square feet of office space, 17.7 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Arroyo Grande, CA Commodity Trading Leased 1,100 square feet of office space — Month to

Month
There are no bank liens encumbering any of the @Gaiyip owned land and buildings.
ltem 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company is involved in litigation arising irethormal course of business. The Company is clyreat a party to any legal
proceedings which management believes could rastlie payment of any amounts that would be mdterithe business or financial condit
of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgcholders during the fourth quarter of the Compaifigcal year ended May 25,
2008.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Skbwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

The Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globaé&8eWarket under the symbol “LNDC”. The followingtle sets forth for
each period indicated the high and low sales pificethe Common Stock.

Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2008 High Low
4 Quarter ending May 25, 20( $ 9.9¢ $ 7.5C
3 Quarter ending February 24, 2C $ 14.0C $ 8.2¢
2 ndQuarter ending November 25, 20 $ 16.78 $ 11.11
1 stQuarter ending August 26, 20 $ 1417 $ 9.6(
Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2007 High Low
4 Quarter ending May 27, 20( $ 15.1:  $ 12.01
3" Quarter ending February 25, 2C $ 13.8C $ 9.4¢
2 "dQuarter ending November 26, 20 $ 11.32  $ 9.0z
1 StQuarter ending August 27, 20 $ 11.11  $ 7.9¢€
Holders

There were approximately 78 holders of record g188,653 shares of outstanding Common Stock aslyfl8, 2008. Since certain
holders are listed under their brokerage firm’s agnthe actual number of shareholders is higher.

Dividends

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Cam@&tock since its inception. The Company preseantgnds to retain all future
earnings, if any, for its business and does natigate paying cash dividends on its Common Stadké foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no shares repurchased by the Compamgdbe quarter ending on May 25, 2008.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The information set forth below is not necessadriljicative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with
the information contained in Item 7 - “Managememiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to @idiased Financial Statements contained in Itenfi tBig report.

Year Year Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
May 25, May 27, May 28, May 29, May 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Statement of Operations Data:
(in thousands)
Revenues:

Product sales $ 227,550 $ 201,89: $ 225,40: $ 201,02( $ 185,66

Service revenues 3,64( 3,53¢ 3,72¢ 3,704 5,791

License fees 6,231 4,01 2,39¢ 88 88

R&D and royalty revenues 1,10¢ 1,05¢ 426 41€ 54¢
Total revenues 238,52 210,49t 231,95! 205,23( 192,09:
Cost of revenue:

Cost of product sales 197,28t 175,25: 188,90 170,35¢ 158,91:

Cost of service revenue 3,011 2,86( 3,00¢ 2,89¢ 3,39(
Total cost of revenue 200,29¢ 178,11: 191,90¢ 173,25¢ 162,30:
Gross profit 38,22¢ 32,38¢ 40,04« 31,97: 29,79:
Operating costs and expenses:

Research and development 3,251 3,07¢ 3,04z 2,54 3,452

Selling, general and administrative 19,80: 21,61¢ 27,97¢ 23,41 22,28¢

Income from sale of FCD — (22,669 _ _ _
Total operating costs and expenses 23,05: 2,021 31,02: 25,95t 25,73t
Operating profit 15,17¢ 30,36¢ 9,02: 6,01 4,05¢
Interest income 2,21¢ 1,94t 633 214 164
Interest expense (22 (251) (452) (4149 (811)
Minority interest expense 477 (412) (529) (411) (537
Other (expense)/income, net — 2 (24) (4) 29
Net income before taxe 16,89¢ 31,64 8,651 5,40z 2,90(
Income tax expense (3,359 (2,45€) = — —
Net income $ 13,54: $ 29,18¢ $ 8,651 $ 540: $ 2,90(
Net income $ 13,54: $ 29,18¢ $ 8,651 $ 5,40: $ 2,90(
Dividends on preferred stock — — — — (464)
Net income applicable to common sharehol $ 13,54: $ 29,18¢ $ 8,651 $ 540z $ 2,43¢
Basic net income per share $ 0.5z $ 1.1¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.2: $ 0.11
Diluted net income per share $ 0.5C $ 1.07 $ 0.3z $ 021 $ 0.12

Shares used in per share computation:
Basic 26,06¢ 25,26( 24,55 23,70: 21,39¢

Diluted 26,93¢ 26,55¢ 25,651 24,61/ 23,55¢
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May 25, May 27, May 28, May 29, May 30,

Balance Sheet Data: 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 44,39¢ $ 62,55¢ $ 15,16« $ 7,42¢ $ 4,96¢€
Total assets 150,58¢ 141,36¢ 119,02¢ 100,07¢ 93,007
Debt — — 2,01¢ 3,08¢ 8,99¢
Retained earnings (deficit) 1,492 (19,339 (41,239 (48,890 (55,297)
Total shareholders' equity $ 114,46¢ $ 110,22¢ $ 85,04¢ $ 72,060 $ 61,54¢

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Company’s Consolidated Financial Stadats contained in Item 8 of
this report. Except for the historical informatioontained herein, the matters discussed in thisrtepe forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangeofA1934. These forward-looking statements ingatertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallynirthose in the forward-looking statements. Poténisis and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this report andparticular, the factors described in Item 1A. "Risdctors.” Landec undertakes no obligation to
revise any forward-looking statements in orderetiecct events or circumstances that may arise Hfeedate of this report.

Overview

Since its inception in October 1986, the Comparsg/lieen engaged in the research and developmestipfelimer technology and
related products. The Company has launched foutuatdines from this core development - QuickCasplints and casts, in April 1994,
which was subsequently sold to Bissell Healthcasgp@ration in August 1997; BreatheWay packagingnetogy for the fresh-cut and whole
produce packaging market, in September 1995; m&liPolymer Systems that includes polymer matefialsarious industrial applications in
June 1997 and for personal care applications ineNer 2003; and Intellicoat coated corn seedsdr-#il of 1999.

Landec has three core businesses - Food Produthsidlegy, Commodity Trading and Technology Licegsifihe Food Products
Technology segment combines the Company’s Inteljmaekaging technology with Apio’s fresh-cut and Yeéhproduce business. The
Commodity Trading business is operated through Alpio. and combines Apio’s Cal-Ex export companthwipio’s domestic buy-sell
commodity business that purchases and sells whaiteahd vegetable products to Asia and domesti¢alWal-Mart. The Technology
Licensing business includes our proprietary Intebit seed coating technology which we have licetsd&dionsanto and our Intelimer polymer
business that licenses and/or supplies producssdeuof our Food Products Technology business tigpamies such as Air Products and Nitta.
See "Business - Description of Core Business."

From inception through May 25, 2008, the Companmgtained earnings were $1.5 million. The Company imeur losses in the
future. The amount of future net profits, if anyincertain and there can be no assurance th@otmpany will be able to sustain profitability
in future years.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make
certain estimates and judgments that affect theuatsaeported in the financial statements and apamying notes. The accounting estimates
that require management’s most significant, diffiesnd subjective judgments include revenue redagnisales returns and allowances;
recognition and measurement of current and defén@ane tax assets and liabilities; the assessofeetoverability of long-lived assets; the
valuation of intangible assets and inventory; takiation and nature of impairments of investmeautst the valuation and recognition of stock-
based compensation.
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These estimates involve the consideration of corfaletors and require management to make judgme&htsanalysis of historical
and future trends, can require extended periodisnafto resolve, and are subject to change froriogeo period. The actual results may differ
from management’s estimates.

Notes and Advances Receiva

Apio has made advances to produce growers foramdpharvesting costs. Typically these advancepaiteoff within the growing
season (less than one year) from crops harvestéielgrower and delivered to Apio. Advances ndiyfphkid during the current growing sea
are converted to interest bearing obligations, evied by contracts and notes receivable. These rexteivable and advances are secured by
liens on land and/or crops and have terms thaterénogn twelve to sixty months. Notes receivable @ggodically reviewed (at least quarterly)
for collectibility. A reserve is established foryamote or advance deemed to not be fully colleetlidsed upon an estimate of the crop value to
be delivered or the fair value of the securitytfo note or advance. If crop prices or the faiueadf the underlying security declines, the
Company may be unable to fully recoup its notedwaace receivable and the estimated losses waddrrithe current period, potentially to
the extent of the total note or advance receivable.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make
required payments. The allowance for doubtful aot®is based on review of the overall conditiomofounts receivable balances and review
of significant past due accounts. If the financiahdition of the Company’s customers were to detaté, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances ayequired. Bad debt losses are partially migidatue to low risks related to the fact that
the Company’s customers are predominantly larganfirally sound national and regional retailers.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miaik the cost of the inventories exceeds thereexed market value, provisions are
recorded currently for the difference between th&t and the market value. These provisions arerdeted based on specific identification for
unusable inventory and an additional reserve, bardustorical losses, for inventory currently ciolesed to be unusable.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from product sales is recognized when ihgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etitktdhas transferred, the price
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reaably assured. Allowances are established for estichuncollectible amounts, product retu
and discounts. If actual future returns and allovesndiffer from past experience, additional alloeesmay be required.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance 8&ti#ff Accounting Bulletin No. 10/Kevenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB
101), (SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred antbrtized to revenue over the period of the agre¢mben a contract exists, the fee is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reagbly assured. Noncancellable, nonrefundable leégss are recognized over the period o
agreement, including those governing research amdldpment activities and any related supply agesgrantered into concurrently with the
license when the risk associated with commercittineof a product is non-substantive at the outééihe arrangement.

Contract revenue for research and development (R&B3corded as earned, based on the performaquegements of the contract.

Non-refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no comtigumvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentsexr@ived or when collection is assured.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairment

The Company is required to evaluate its goodwitl ardefinite lived intangible assets for impairmannually in accordance with
SFAS No. 142. This evaluation incorporates a vamétestimates including the fair value of the Camy's operating segments. If the carrying
value of an operating segment’s assets exceedstimated fair value, the Company is required ¢ore an impairment loss, possibly for the
entire carrying balance of goodwill and intangibtsets. To date, no impairment losses have bearreac

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109, ‘Accounting for Income Taxesghich requires that
deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognizéatguenacted tax rates for the effect of tempodiffgrences between the book and tax bases of
recorded assets and liabilities. The Company miatzaluation allowances when it is likely that@idla portion of a deferred tax asset will not
be realized. Changes in valuation allowances frenpgd to period are included in the Company’s inedax provision in the period of change.
In determining whether a valuation allowance isramated, the Company takes into account such faesior earnings history, expected
future earnings, unsettled circumstances thanfiiworably resolved, would adversely affect utifiaa of a deferred tax asset, carry-back and
carry-forward periods, and tax strategies thatdqaitentially enhance the likelihood of realizatamfra deferred tax asset. At May 25, 2008, the
Company had no valuation allowance against defdéee@dssets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Compartgldgshes accruals for certain tax contingencieteurIN 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation ofSBAStatement No.109hen, despite the belief that the Company’s taxrrepositions are
fully supported, the Company believes that certakpositions are likely to be challenged and thatCompany’s positions may not be fully
sustained. The tax-contingency accruals are adjustight of changing facts and circumstanceshsagthe progress of tax audits, case law
and emerging legislation. The Company recognizeseast and penalties related to uncertain tax ipositas a component of income tax
expense. The Company’s effective tax rate includesmpact of tax-contingency accruals as consilappropriate by management.

A number of years may elapse before a particuldtemdor which the Company has accrued, is auditadifinally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies bysdlidtion. While it is often difficult to predict éhfinal outcome or the timing of resolution of
any particular tax matter, the Company believetaitscontingency accruals are adequate to addressrktax contingencies. Favorable
resolution of such matters could be recognizedraslaction to the Company’s effective tax ratehia year of resolution. Unfavorable
settlement of any particular issue could increhseeffective tax rate. Any resolution of a tax ssway require the use of cash in the year of
resolution. The Company’s tax-contingency accraaéspresented in the balance sheet within acciabilities.

Stock-Based Compensation

On May 29, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R;hwikia revision of SFAS No. 123Atcounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, and supersedes APB No. 25Atcounting for Stock Issued to Employe€#\PB 25”). Among other items, SFAS 123R
requires companies to record compensation expenstdckbased awards issued to employees and directoxeirarge for services provide
The amount of the compensation expense is bas#tbastimated fair value of the awards on theingdates and is recognized over the
required service periods. The Company’s stock-baseatds include stock option grants and restristedk unit awards (RSUSs).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Companyiaegfhe intrinsic value method set forth in APBt®=alculate the compensation
expense for stock-based awards. The Company hasitédly set the exercise price for its stock opt equal to the market value on the grant
date. As a result, the options had no intrinsicigain their grant dates, and therefore the Comgahgot record any compensation expense
unless the terms of the stock options were subsglyuaodified. For RSUs, the calculation of compegitn expense under APB 25 and
SFAS 123R is similar except for the accountingtiresnt for forfeitures as discussed below.
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The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modifiedgarctive transition method, which requires thdiaation of the accounting
standard to (i) all stock-based awards issued @iter May 29, 2006 and (ii) any outstanding stbelsed awards that were issued but not
vested as of May 29, 2006. Accordingly, the Compmuognsolidated financial statements as of May2Z®6 and for the fiscal year themded
were accounted for under the provisions of APB 25.

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensatigense, is based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model. Upon the adoption BAS 123R, the Company changed its method of cdlogland recognizing the fair value
of stock-based compensation arrangements to thiglstiline, single-option method. Compensation esgefor all stock option and restricted
stock awards granted prior to May 29, 2006 will trmune to be recognized using the straight-line,tipld-option method. In addition,
SFAS 123R requires the estimation of the expea#ddifures of stock-based awards at the time afitgras a result, the Company uses
historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitiand records stock-based compensation expensoottiose awards that are expected to vest
and revises those estimates in subsequent pefitasactual forfeitures differ from the prior estites. In the pro-forma information required
under SFAS 123R for periods prior to May 29, 2006, Company accounted for forfeitures as they aedur

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, FASB’s EITF reached a consensussue [So. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to
Governmental Authorities Should be Presented irrtheme StatemenrtEITF Issue 06-3 provides accounting guidance rdigg the
presentation of taxes assessed by a governmeti@iriy on a revenue producing transaction betwaesaller and a customer such as sales anc
use taxes. EITF Issue 06-3 was effective for figealrs beginning after December 15, 2006. The &mlopid not have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or resolt operations. The Company records the expemsafes and use taxes to general and
administrative expenses.

In July 2006, FASB issued FIN 48Atcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Iptetation of FASB Statement No. 09
which prescribes a recognition threshold and measent process for recording in the financial sta&teisiuncertain tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 reguihat a company recognize the financial stateeféedts of a tax position when there is a
likelihood of more than 50 percent, based on tobbriEal merits, that the position will be sustaingen examination. It also provides guidance
on the derecognition, classification, interest padalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition requirements for uncertain tax
positions. The accounting provisions of FIN 48 weffective for the Company beginning January 1,720he adoption of FIN 48 did not have
a significant effect on the Company’s consoliddtrdncial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 1974if Value Measurementd SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expandsldi&ae about fair value measurements. SFAS Nodbg&g not require new fair value
measurements but provides guidance on how to meéaiuvalue by providing a fair value hierarchyeddo classify the source of information.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years begimnafter November 15, 2007. However, on Februan208, the FASB issued FASB Staff
(“FSP™ FAS No. 157-2 which delays the effectiveedfor all non-financial assets and liabilities eptthose that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value in the financial statements on a reagrfdasis (at least annually). FSP 157- 2 defergffleetive date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interimgusiwithin the fiscal years for items within th@pe of this FSP. Effective for fiscal year
2009, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 157, excefit applies to those non-financial assets andfimamcial liabilities as noted in FSP FAS
157-2. The Company does not expect such adoptibave a material effect on its consolidated finahposition, results of operations or cash
flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15Bhé Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities— Including
an amendment of FASB Statement No..185+AS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measuwany financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value that are not currently requitethe measured at fair value. Subsequent adjussnethe fair value of the financial
instruments and liabilities an entity elects torgat fair value will be recognized in earnings AA-No. 159 also establishes additional
disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 159 is effedtivdiscal years beginning after November 15, 200ith early adoption permitted provided
the entity also elects to apply the provisions BAS No. 157. The Company is currently evaluatingethibr it is going to adopt the fair value
election under this standard.
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The FASB issued SFAS No. 141R (revised 200BuSiness Combinations which significantly changes the financial accougtamd
reporting for business combination transaction®ASKNo. 141R requires the acquiring entity in a hass combination to recognize all (and
only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumede transaction and establishes the acquisitita fair value as the measurement objectiv
all assets acquired and liabilities assumed insinlegs combination. Certain provisions of this déad will, among other things, impact the
determination of acquisition-date fair value of sioieration paid in a business combination (inclgdinntingent consideration); exclude
transaction costs from acquisition accounting; emahge accounting practices for acquired continigenacquisition-related restructuring
costs, in-process research and development, indieation assets, and tax benefits. For the Comp8RAS No. 141R is effective for business
combinations occurring after December 31, 2008. Company is currently evaluating the future impaatd disclosures of this standard.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofneinhAccounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 16a\Nbncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial StatementsSFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bull¢tiRB”) No. 51, “ Consolidated Financial
Statement$ and establishes accounting and reporting stasdardthe noncontrolling interest (minority inteteis a subsidiary. This statement
requires the reporting of all noncontrolling inteieas a separate component of stockholders’ edéyeporting of consolidated net income
(loss) as the amount attributable to both the gaaed the noncontrolling interests and the sepatistdosure of net income (loss) attributabl
the parent and to the noncontrolling interestsaddition, this statement provides accounting apdnténg guidance related to changes in
noncontrolling ownership interests. Other thanrdporting requirements described above which reqeitrospective application, the
provisions of SFAS No. 160 are to be applied prospely in the first annual reporting period begimmon or after December 15, 2008. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had nentmoding interests on its consolidated finanattements. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of this standard, but wowdtlexpect it to have a material impact on its ctidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified the EITF cosssron EITF Issue No. 07-1Atcounting for Collaborative Arrangemeritthat
discusses how parties to a collaborative arrange@adrich does not establish a legal entity withilcls arrangement) should account for
various activities. The consensus indicates thstisdacurred and revenues generated from transaotigh third parties (i.e. parties outside of
the collaborative arrangement) should be reporetthé collaborators on the respective line itemih@ir income statements pursuant to EITF
Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BlenaAgent” Additionally, the consensus provides that income
statement characterization of payments betweepdheipants in a collaborative arrangement shbeldbased upon existing authoritative
pronouncements; analogy to such pronouncements iithin their scope; or a reasonable, rationadi eonsistently applied accounting policy
election. For the Company, EITF Issue No. 07-ffiscéive beginning January 1, 2009 and is to bdiagpetrospectively to all periods
presented for collaborative arrangements existingfahe date of adoption. The Company is curregsigluating the impact of this standard on
its consolidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2008 Compared to FisearEnded May 27, 2007

Revenueqin thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
ended ended
May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 Change
Apio Value Added $ 167,817 $ 154,74 8%
Apio Packaging 3,377 1,73( 95%
Food Technology 171,19 156,47: 9%
Apio Trading 60,41 49,70¢ 22%
Total Apio 231,60t 206,18( 12%
Technology Licensing 6,91¢ 4,31¢ 60%
Total Revenues $ 238,527 $ 210,49¢ 13%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged frestacd whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgead in our proprietary packaging and sold udgeo’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels. In addition, value-added revenuehite the revenues generated from Apio Cooling,a.¥egetable cooling operation in which

Apio is the general partner with a 60% ownershigipmn.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues fofitwal year ended May 25, 2008 compared to theegaeniod last year is due to
increased product offerings, new customers aneased sales to existing customers. Overall valdedidales volume increased 14% during
the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 compared teénee period last year. The increase in value-addied volumes was higher than the
increase in revenues due primarily to the introiducof several new value-added products duringafigear 2008 that have average sales prices
per unit that are lower than the average salegpper unit for other value-added products.

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packageuannology business using its BreatheWay membtestenology. The first
commercial application included in Apio packagis@iur banana packaging technology.

The increase in Apio packaging revenues for theafigear ended May 25, 2008 compared to the sameddast year was primarily
due to the increase in the minimum payments redeien Chiquita as a result of the amended Chidigemse agreement (see Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Apio Trading
Apio trading revenues consist of revenues geneffabed the purchase and sale of primarily whole cadity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-Ealand from the purchase and sale of whole comiypdiit and vegetable products

domestically. The export portion of trading revesfmr fiscal year 2008 was $56.2 million or 93%athl trading revenues.

The increase in revenues in Apio's trading busifasthe fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 comparetiécssame period last year was
primarily due to a 16% increase in trading busirezdes volumes.

Technology Licensing

Technology licensing revenues consist of reveneesigted from the licensing agreements with Momsakit Products and Nitta.
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The increase in technology licensing revenues lier fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 compared to #émeesperiod last year w
primarily due to the licensing revenues from theniglanto license and supply agreement entered inlecamber 1, 2006.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year endec Fiscal Year ended

May 25, 200t May 27, 200° Change
Apio Value Added $ 2461F $ 23,42¢ 5%
Apio Packaging 3,24¢ 1,63¢ 98%
Food Technology 27,86( 25,06" 11%
Apio Trading 3,44¢ 3,18 8%
Total Apio 31,30¢ 28,25 11%
Technology Licensing 6,91¢ 4,13¢ 67%
Total Gross Profit $ 38,22¢ $ 32,38t 18%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnadg including product mix, customer mix, manctfaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors influeoceare interrelated with other factors.
Therefore, it is difficult to precisely quantifyghimpact of each item individually. The Companylues in cost of sales all of the costs related
to the sale of products in accordance with U.Segaly accepted accounting principles. These dostade the following: raw materials
(including produce, seeds and packaging), dirdmirlaoverhead (including indirect labor, depreaatiand facility related costs) and shipping
and shipping related costs. The following discussiorrounding gross profit includes managements estimates of the reasons for the
changes for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 emetpto the same period last year as outlineddnehle above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addeécialty packaged vegetable business for thalfigar ended May 25, 2008
compared to the same period last year was duetedsed revenues, partially offset by increasedmaterial costs, primarily the cost of
produce during fiscal year 2008 compared to figealr 2007.

Apio Packaging

The increase in gross profit for Apio packagingtfue fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 compared tednee period last year was
primarily due to the increase in minimum paymeetsived from Chiquita as a result of the amendeduita license agreement.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell business tbalizes a commission-based margin in the 4-6%eahhe increase in gross profit
during the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 comp#wetle prior fiscal year was not material to thesmlidated Landec gross profit.

Technology Licensing

The increase in technology licensing gross profittfie fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 comparetigcsame period of the prior year
was primarily due to an increase in gross profitrfthe Monsanto licensing agreement entered intDemember 1, 2006.
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Operating Expensegqin thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,251 $ 1,16¢ 7%
Technology Licensing 2,00( 1,90¢ 5%
Total R&D $ 3,251 $ 3,074 6%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 13,83 $ 12,66 9%
)
Corporate 5,97( 8,94¢ (33%
Total S,G&A $ 19,801 $ 21,61¢ (8)%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses conisigtrily of expenses involved in product developirend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts d@bAspe focused on the Company’s proprietary Braaidne membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the slifelfdf bananas and other shelf-life sensitive valglets and fruit. In the Technology Licensing
business, the research and development efforfeemsed on uses for the proprietary Intelimer paysoutside of food.

The increase in research and development expemistrseffiscal year ended May 25, 2008 comparetdecstme period last year was
not material.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsisarily of sales and marketing expenses astatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdmnstadministrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and administratkpenses for the fiscal year ended May 25, 200@aoned to the same period last
year was primarily due to the fact that sellinghgl and administrative expenses for Corporat¢hifiscal year ended May 27, 2007 inclu
$3.9 million of net non-recurring expenses, of wih$5.4 million were from expenses incurred by Larsirmer direct marketing and sales
seed business that was sold to Monsanto in Dece?@®$; partially offset by the recording of netggeds of $1.5 million from an insurance
settlement during fiscal year 2007. This decreaseiling, general and administrative expenses wartally offset by increased sales and
marketing expenses at Apio and increased genedah@ministrative expenses at Corporate primarilgteel to accounting fees and tax
consulting fees.

Other (in thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 25, 200¢ May 27, 2007 Change
Interest Income $ 2,21¢ $ 1,94¢ 14%
Interest Expenst (22 (257) (91)%
Minority Interest Expense (477) (412 16%
Other Expenses - 2 N/M
Total Other Income $ 1,72C $ 1,28( 34%
Income taxes $ (3,359 $ (2,456 37%
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Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the fiscal yarated May 25, 2008 compared to the same peritgidas was due to the increase in
cash available for investing as a result of thdngaseived from the sale of FCD in December 2006.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the figazal ended May 25, 2008 compared to the prior weardue to the Company’s
reduction of debt that was assumed by Monsantodrséle of FCD to Monsanto on December 1, 2006.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists of the nifypdanterest associated with the limited partnerguity interest in the net income of
Apio Cooling, LP.

The increase in the minority interest expensedodi year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2007 wasnabérial to consolidated Lanc
net income.

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist of non-operating incomeeapenses.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense in fiscal 608 compared to fiscal year 2007 is due tmarease in the Company’s
effective tax rate from 8% last year to 20% thiarydue to the decrease in the deferred incomeahation allowance and fully utilizing the
Company’s net operating loss carryforwards ancctaslits during fiscal year 2008.

Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2007 Compared to FisearEnded May 28, 2006

Revenueqin thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 27, 200° May 28, 200¢ Change
Apio Value Added $ 154,74: $ 136,14: 14%
Apio Packaging 1,73( 68E 15%%
Food Technology 156,47: 136,82t 14%
Apio Trading 49,70¢ 57,99( (14)%
Total Apio 206,18( 194,81¢ 6%
Landec Ag 2,831 34,09¢ (92)%
Corporate 1,487 3,041 (5)%
Technology Licensing 4,31¢ 37,13; (88)%
Total Revenues $ 210,49¢ $ 231,95: (9)%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged frestacd whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdged in our proprietary packaging and sold uAgeo’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels and from service revenues from Apimling LP.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues fofigteal year ended May 27, 2007 compared to theegaaniod last year is due to
increased product offerings, increased sales stiegicustomers and the addition of new custon&pscifically, sales of Apio’s value-added
12-ounce specialty packaged retail product linevgkt8% and sales of Apio’s value-added vegetablefraducts also grew 18% during the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 compared to the gaeried last year. Overall value-added sales volimeased 15% during the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2007 compared to the same periogéast
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Apio Packaging

Apio packaging consists of Apio’s packaging tecloggl business using its BreatheWay membrane techpold he first commercial
application included in Apio packaging is our baag@ackaging technology.

The increase in Apio packaging revenues for theafigear ended May 27, 2007 compared to the sam@ddast year was not mater
to consolidated Landec revenues.

Apio Trading

Apio trading revenues consist of revenues geneaiethrily from the purchase and sale of whole cadity fruit and vegetable
products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-Ealand from the purchase and sale of whole comiypdiit and vegetable products
domestically. The export portion of trading revemimr fiscal year 2007 was $46.4 million or 93%athl trading revenues.

The decrease in revenues in Apio's trading busifueghe fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 comparetiecsame period last year was
primarily due to planned decreases in the doméstj¢sell commodity sales of 57%. Overall tradinpsarolumes were lower by 27% for the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 compared to the gear. In addition, export revenues decreased 884a lower sales volumes. The decrease
in sales volumes was partially offset by higherrage sales prices due to the scarcity of produghgwertain months of the year.

Landec Ag

Landec Ag revenues have historically consisteceeénues generated from the sale of hybrid seedtodemmers under the Fielder’'s
Choice Direct brand and from the sale of hybriddse@n and soybeans under the Heartland Hybrids®d(these brands, collectively FCD,
and the related assets were sold to ASI on Decefnl2806) and from the sale of Intellicoat coatethand soybean seeds to farmers and seec
companies. Prior to the sale of FCD, virtuallyailLandec Ag’s revenues were generated during tiragany’s third and fourth quarters. As a
result of the technology licensing agreement withniglanto, Landec Ag license fee revenues will begeized evenly each quarter for a period
of five years.

The decrease in revenues at Landec Ag during $kalfyear ended May 27, 2007 compared to the senddast year was primarily
due to the sale of FCD to ASI, partially offset®8.7 million in license fee revenues from the linteht license agreement with Monsanto.

Corporate
Corporate revenues consist of revenues generatedfartnering with others under research and dpuedmit agreements and supply
agreements and from fees for licensing our pragrnyeintelimer technology to others and from theresponding royalties from these license

agreements.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the fissad gnded May 27, 2007 compared to the same pefrie prior year resulted from
certain nonrecurring licensing revenues recorddtermprior year and was not material to consolid&tendec revenues.
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Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 27, 200’ May 28, 200t Change
Apio Value Added $ 23,42¢ $ 23,02: 2%
Apio Packaging 1,63¢ 61¢ 165%
Food Technology 25,06¢ 23,64 6%
Apio Trading 3,18 3,212 (1)%
Total Apio 28,25 26,85 5%
Landec Ag 2,647 10,43¢ (75)%
Corporate 1,487 2,75: (46)%
Technology Licensing 4,13¢ 13,19 (69)%
Total Gross Profit $ 32,38¢ $ 40,04 (19%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, mancifiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors influeocare interrelated with other factors.
Therefore, it is difficult to precisely quantifyghimpact of each item individually. The Companylides in cost of sales all of the costs related
to the sale of products in accordance with U.Segaly accepted accounting principles. These dastade the following: raw materials
(including produce, seeds and packaging), dirdmirlaoverhead (including indirect labor, depreaatiand facility related costs) and shipping
and shipping related costs. The following discussiorrounding gross profit includes managements estimates of the reasons for the
changes for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 ewetpto the same period last year as outlinedeiiahle above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addeécialty packaged vegetable business for thalfigar ended May 27, 2007
compared to the same period last year was duetedsed revenues, a more profitable mix of prodsits and improved operational
efficiencies. The more profitable mix of productédsand improved operational efficiencies were atrammpletely offset by the increased
costs associated with weather related shortagesmfacted product during several periods of figfl7. These shortages required Apio to
procure supplemental product on the open marketsts significantly above contracted prices andlted in sales volume decreases and labor
cost increases.

Apio Packaging

The increase in gross profit for Apio Packagingtfar fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 compared taénee period last year was
primarily due to the revenues received from owgriging agreement with Chiquita and from researchdavelopment contracts with other tt
parties.

Apio Trading

Apio’s trading business is a buy/sell business teéalizes a commission-based margin in the 4-6%eaahhe decrease in gross profit
during the fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 compévete prior fiscal year was primarily due to tleeluction in revenues which was almost

completely offset by a shift to higher margin exgmoducts from lower margin domestic commaoditydarcts.

Landec Ag
The decrease in gross profit for Landec Ag forfibeal year ended May 27, 2007 compared to the gmerieds last year was due to

the sale of FCD to ASI and the consequent lossafyxct sales and gross profit normally recordednduthe second half of our fiscal year. The
decrease in Landec Ag gross profit was partialfgeifby $2.7 million of gross profit from the Irifebat license agreement with Monsanto.
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Corporate

The decrease in gross profit for Corporate forfibeal year ended May 27, 2007 compared to ther gear was primarily due to the
Aesthetic Sciences’ licensing revenues and grasf# pecorded in the prior year.

Operating Expenseqin thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 27, 2007 May 28, 200¢ Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,16¢ $ 1,10¢ 6%
Landec Ag 26€ 47C (43)%
Corporate 1,63¢ 1,46¢ 1204
Total R&D $ 3,07. $ 3,047 1%
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 12,667 $ 13,63 (N%
Landec Ag 5,367 9,61¢ (49)%
Corporate 3,582 4,73( (24)%
Total S,G&A $ 21,61¢ $ 27,97¢ (23)%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses consigtrily of expenses involved in product developimend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts d@bApe focused on the Company’s proprietary Braadne membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the slifelfdf bananas and other shelf-life sensitive vaiglets and fruit. At Landec Ag, the research
and development efforts are focused on the Compagmgprietary Intellicoat coatings for seeds, pritgaorn seed. Beginning December 1,
2006, all of the operating costs and expense oflea\g are being paid for by Monsanto in accordamitie the technology license and supply
agreement. At Corporate, the research and develupefferts are primarily focused on uses for theppietary Intelimer polymers outside of
food and agriculture.

The increase in research and development expeoisteffiscal year ended May 27, 2007 comparetesame period last year was
not material.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsisarily of sales and marketing expenses assatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdratadministrative expenses.

The decrease in selling, general and administratkpenses for the fiscal year ended May 27, 20@1pened to the same period last
year was due to (1) the sale of FCD to ASI on Ddmamni, 2006, which eliminated selling, general adahinistrative expenses associated \
agricultural business for the second half of figesdr 2007, (2) onéme new packaging design and marketing relatetsdbat were incurred
Apio during the first quarter of fiscal year 200&da(3) the recording of the net proceeds of $1/6anifrom an insurance settlement to
Corporate selling, general and administrative egpsruring the first six months of fiscal year 2007
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Other (in thousands):

Fiscal Year ended Fiscal Year ended

May 27, 2007 May 28, 200¢ Change
Interest Income $ 1,94t $ 633 207%
Interest Expenst (251) (452) (49)%
Minority Interest Expense (412 (529 (22)%
Other Expenses 2 (24) (92)%
Total Other Income (Exp.) $ 1,28 $ (372) N/M
Income taxes $ (2,45€6) $ 0 N/M

Interest Income

The increase in interest income for the fiscal yerated May 27, 2007 compared to the prior yearpwiasarily due to the increase in
cash available for investing and higher averaggrést rates on those investments.

Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during the figaalended May 27, 2007 compared to the prior ywaardue to the Company’s
reduction of debt.

Minority Interest Expense

The minority interest expense consists of the nifypdanterest associated with the limited partneguity interest in the net income of
Apio Cooling, LP.

The decrease in the minority interest expensestafiyear 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006 waganen-recurring gains for Apio
Cooling during the first quarter of fiscal year 00

Other Expenses
Other consists of non-operating income and expenses
Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense in fiscal 2807 is due to the income realized from the s&lCD which resulted in the
Company recording a tax provision of $2.5 milli@m §tate income taxes and federal AMT.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 25, 2008, the Company had cash and ogsivaents of $44.4 million, a net decrease of $18illion from $62.6 million a
May 27, 2007.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $17.5 million of cash flow fronergbing activities during the fiscal year ended N&y 2008 compared to using
$2.5 million in operating activities for the fisogdar ended May 27, 2007. The primary sources sl é@m operating activities during fiscal
year 2008 were from net income of $13.5 million aod-cash related expenses of $3.1 million, such asegéegiion and stock based
compensation.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the figeaar ended May 25, 2008 was $20.2 million comgdoecash provided by investing
activities of $41.9 million for the same periodtlgsar due primarily to the sale of FCD. The priynases of cash from investing activities
during fiscal year 2008 were for (1) the purchals®402 million of property and equipment primarity the growth of Apio’s value-added
processing business, (2) the purchase of $14.émif marketable securities and (3) the repurclof$d.3 million of subsidiary common
stock not owned by the Company.
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the flsezar ended May 25, 2008 was $15.5 million comgdoenet cash provided by
financing activities of $2.5 million for the samerd last year. The primary uses of cash fromrfaireg activities during fiscal year 2008 were
for the repurchase of all of the outstanding ogiohApio not owned by Landec for $19.5 million whiwas partially offset by the tax benefit
from stock based compensation of $3.4 million.

Capital Expenditures

During the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, Landgrcipased property and equipment to support thetprofvApio’s value added
processing business. These expenditures represietathjority of the $4.2 million of capital expétudes.

Debt

Apio has a $7.0 million revolving line of creditthiWells Fargo Bank N.A. On September 1, 2007, Apitended its revolving line of
credit with Wells Fargo Bank N.A. by extending teem of the line to August 31, 2009. In additidme interest rate on the revolving line of
credit was reduced to either prime less 0.75% ®LIBOR adjusted rate plus 1.50%. The revolving laf credit with Wells Fargo contains
certain restrictive covenants, which require Agiorteet certain financial tests, including minimwevdils of net income, maximum leverage
ratio, minimum net worth and maximum capital expamds. Landec has pledged substantially all ofabeets of Apio to secure the line with
Wells Fargo. At May 25, 2008, no amounts were amniding under the revolving line of credit. Apio leesen in compliance with all loan
covenants during fiscal year 2008.

Contractual Obligations

The Companys material contractual obligations for the nexefixears and thereafter as of May 25, 2008, arellasvk (in thousands

Due in Fiscal Year Ended May

Obligation Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafte
Income taxes $ — — — — — — —
Operating Leases 1,46% 71€ 47¢ 25€& 11 — —
Licensing Obligation 35C 5C 10C 10C 10C — —
Purchase Commitments 2,21 2,21% — — _ _ _

Total $ 4028 $% 2981 % 57¢ $ 35¢€ $ 111 $ — $ —

The income tax amounts above exclude liabilitiedanrFASB Interpretation No. 4&ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesas
we are unable to reasonably estimate the ultinratauat or timing of settlement. See Note 11 in tlmteld to Consolidated Financial Statem
for further discussion.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, arraigments to, any special purpose entities thatlevoanstitute material offralance
sheet financing other than the operating lease domants listed above.
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Landec’s future capital requirements will depenchamerous factors, including the progress of isgaech and development
programs; the continued development of marketiatgssand distribution capabilities; the abilityl@ndec to establish and maintain new
collaborative and licensing arrangements; any @ecti® pursue additional acquisition opportuniti@eather conditions that can affect the
supply and price of produce, the timing and amoifiaiy, of payments received under licensing awtarch and development agreements; the
costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecutingfehding and enforcing intellectual property riglite ability to comply with regulatory
requirements; the emergence of competitive teclyyodmd market forces; the effectiveness of prodantmercialization activities and
arrangements; and other factors. If Landec’s ctiyr@vailable funds, together with the internallgngrated cash flow from operations are not
sufficient to satisfy its capital needs, Landec lddue required to seek additional funding througteo arrangements with collaborative
partners, additional bank borrowings and publipravate sales of its securities. There can be sarasce that additional funds, if required,
be available to Landec on favorable terms if at all

Landec believes that its debt facilities, cash figperations, along with existing cash, cash eqgaivaland existing borrowing
capacities will be sufficient to finance its opévatl and capital requirements for the foreseehlilee.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Not material.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcédenting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of@hief Executive Officer and our Chief Financialfioér, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the ettwegberiod covered by this Annual Report on Fof¥K1 Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial OfficeaMe concluded that our disclosure controls andgaioes are effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed in reportsdilinder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, anded, is recorded, processed, summa
and reported within the time periods specified iy $ecurities and Exchange Commission, and aretigfdn providing reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed by thenpany in such reports is accumulated and commuddatthe Company’s management,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Bimcial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely dgeons regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reponrti

There were no changes in our internal controls &mancial reporting during the quarter ended May 2008 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal controls over financial repogtin

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1@34amended). Our management assessed the effexsdssof our internal control over
financial reporting as of May 25, 2008. In makihgstassessment, our management used the critef@tbeby the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@”")nternal Control - Integrated Framework. Our ngeraent has concluded that, as of
May 25, 2008, our internal control over financigporting was effective to provide reasonable asmeraegarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. Our
independent registered public accounting firm, E€n¥oung LLP, have issued an audit report on tfieativeness of our internal control over
financial reporting, which is included below.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financegarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Artool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofalesassurance that the objectives of the cosyrsilem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of conimuist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgstems, no evaluation of controls can provide las@ssurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company hbeen detected.

REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Landep@ation

We have audited Landec Corporation’s internal adrtver financial reporting as of May 25, 2008, é&en criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). Landec Corporation’s management is rasjiide for maintaining effective internal contrales financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal coatret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on the comparigternal control over financial reporting basex
our audit.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tst audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becomeéequate because of changes in condit

or that the degree of compliance with the policgeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Landec Corporation maintained, limeaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of May 25,
2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Landec Corporatidrsabsidiaries as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2860d the related statements of inco
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each®tlithee years ended May 25, 2008 of Landec Coiiparahd our report dated August 7, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 7, 2008

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemehich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 22820Q0 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year @mkred by this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statein&hich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2282000 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year @mekred by this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetmehich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 22820Q0 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year @mkred by this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independence
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statein&hich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2282000 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year @mekred by this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetmehich the Registrant will file

with the Commission no later than September 22820Q0 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year @mkred by this Report) and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@) 1. Consolidated Financial Statements of Landec Cotjmora
Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent RegistePatlic Accounting Firm 44
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 25, 2008 and21ag007 45
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare8mday 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006 46

Consolidated Statements of Changes in ShareholBersty for the Years Ended May 25, 2008, May 2702@nc 47

May 28, 2006
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006 48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 49

2.  All schedules provided for in the applicable acamgregulations of the Securities and Exchange @@sion hav
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders of Landec Qaitjmm

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Landec Corporation and subsidiarie$ Msy 25, 2008 and May
27,2007, and the related consolidated stateméimsame, shareholders' equity, and cash flowsfmh of the three years ended May 25,
2008. These financial statements are the respditysilifi the Company's management. Our respongtigito express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstatts of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referalove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢donsolidated financial position of
Landec Corporation and subsidiaries at May 25, 20a8May 27, 2007, and the consolidated resultsaif operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years ended May 25, 2008, iroconity with U.S. generally accepted accounting gipfes.

As discussed in the Notes to the consolidated &izdustatements, on May 28, 2007, the Company adioyite provisions of SFAS
Interpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an fiptetation of FASB Statement No. 1,08nd changed its method of
recognizing uncertain tax positions. Also, effeetMay 29, 2006, the Company changed its methodadunting for sharéased compensati
to conform with SFAS No. 123-FShare Based Payments

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Landec
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog as of May 25, 2008, based on criteria esthbtisn Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission and our ttegieied August 7, 2008 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 7, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbamts of $169 and $206 at May 25, 2008 i

May 27, 2007, respectively
Accounts receivable, related party
Inventories, net
Notes and advances receivable
Deferred taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill, net

Trademarks, net

Notes receivabl

Other assets

Total Assets

LANDEC CORPORATION

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Related party payables
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue

Deferred taxes
Minority interest

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 sharbeazed; 26,156,323 and 25,891,168

shares issued and outstanding at May 25, 2008 ayd2vl, 2007, respectively

Retained earnings (deficit)
Total shareholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes.
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May 25, 2008  May 27, 2007
$ 44,39 $ 62,55¢
14,64: —

19,46( 17,63

411 554

7,32¢ 6,80(

501 282

2,18( —

1,74¢ 1,31¢

90,66¢ 89,13¢

21,30¢ 20,27(

27,35¢ 21,40:

8,22¢ 8,22¢

— 96

3,03t 2,23:

$ 150,58¢ $ 141,36
$ 18,99 $ 14,16
277 17¢

2,197 3,12¢

2,93( 1,34

3,61¢ 3,491

28,00- 22,29t

5,00( 7,00(

1,56¢ —

1,55( 1,84¢

36,12: 31,14(
112,97 129,56

1,49: (19,337

114,46( 110,22

$ 150,58¢ $ 141,36




Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues:
Product sales

Services revenue, related party

License fees

Research, development and royalty revenues
Royalty revenues, related party

Total revenues

Cost of revenue:
Cost of product sales

Cost of product sales, related party
Cost of services revenue

Total cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Income from sale of FCD (Note 2)

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating income

Interest income

Interest expense
Minority interest expense
Other expense, net

Net income before taxe
Income tax expense

Net income

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computation:

Basic

Diluted

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 25, May 27, May 28,
2008 2007 2006
$ 227,55 $ 201,89: $ 225,40:

3,64( 3,53¢ 3,72¢
6,231 4,01: 2,39¢
1,07t 80t 162
31 24¢ 264
238,52 210,49¢ 231,95:
194,86¢ 172,25: 184,34!
2,42( 3,001 4 ,55¢
3,011 2,86( 3,00¢
200,29¢ 178,11: 191,90¢
38,22¢ 32,38¢ 40,04+
3,251 3,07¢ 3,04:
19,80: 21,61¢ 27,97¢
— (22,669 —
23,05: 2,021 31,02:
15,17¢ 30,36¢ 9,02
2,21¢ 1,94¢ 632
(22) (251) (452)
477) (412) (529

— (2 (29
16,89¢ 31,64t 8,651
(3,359 (2,45¢€) —
$ 13,54: $ 29,18¢ $ 8,651
0.52 1.1¢ $ 0.3t

$ 05C $ 1.07 $ 0.32
26,06¢ 25,26( 24,55
26,93t 26,55¢ 25,657

See accompanying notes
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Balance at May 29, 2005
Issuance of common stock at $0.86 to $6.75 peesha
Issuance of common stock for the net assets oftldadr
Hybrids
Net income and comprehensive income

Balance at May 28, 2006

Issuance of common stock at $1.66 to $8.86 peesha
Stock-based compensation

Repurchase of subsidiary common stock and options
Net income and comprehensive income

Balance at May 27, 2007
Reclassify repurchase of subsidiary common stodk a
options
Issuance of common stock at $1.89 to $7.53 peesha
Issuance of common stock for vested restrictedkstoc
units
Stock-based compensation

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Repurchase of subsidiary common stock and options

(Note 5)
Net income and comprehensive income

Balance at May 25, 2008

See accompanying notes

Retained Total
Common Stock Earnings Shareholders'
Shares Amount (Deficit) Equity

24,086,36 $ 121,95( (49,89() 72,06(
678,74« 3,37¢ — 3,37¢
152,18t 96( — 96(
— — 8,651 8,651
24,917,29 126,28t (41,239 85,04¢
973,87( 2,651 — 2,657
— 61F — 61F

— — (7,287) (7,2872)
— — 29,18¢ 29,18¢
25,891,16 129,56( (19,337 110,22t
— (2,502 7,28: 4,78(
255,15: 1,12( — 1,12(
10,00: — — —
— 871 — 871
— 3,42¢ — 3,42:

— (19,499 — (19,499
— — 13,54 13,54
26,156,32 $ 112,97. 1,49: 114,46t
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adj. to reconcile net income to net cash providgdused in) operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Deferred taxes
Minority interest
Increase in long-term receivable
Income from sale of FCD (Note 2)
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipime
Investment in unconsolidated business

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effecsfacquisitions:

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable, related party
Inventories, net

Issuance of notes and advances receivable
Collection of notes and advances receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable

Related party accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Other accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Net proceeds from sale of FCD (Note 2)

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquiredesrdout payments
Issuance of notes and advances receivable

Collection of notes and advances receivable

Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment

Purchase of marketable securities

Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of common stock

Proceeds from the exercise of subsidiary options
Repurchase of subsidiary options

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Net change in other assets

Borrowings on lines of credit

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 25, May 27, May 28,
2008 2007 2006
13,54 29,18¢ 8,651
3,20¢ 3,26( 3,20:
871 61t —
(611) — —
477 412 52¢
(800) (400) —
— (24,58)) —
— 43 (120)
— (481) (2,312
(1,829 273) (1,887)
14z 7 (85)
(529 (8,737%) (3,129
(2,652 (2,186 (1,767
2,42¢ 2,22¢ 1,88
(430) (26€) 431
4,82¢ (2,967 3,68t
98 (35¢€) (260)
(929 95 1,39¢
1,59( (65¢€) (14¢€)
(1,879 2,60( (229)
17,52( (2,4672) 10,86
(4,240) (6,782) (4,74¢)
— 49,44 —
(1,437 (1,320 (3,860)
12 (37 (425
11€ 63¢ 224
— — 1,35(
(14,64%) — (99))
— — 2,95¢
(20,219 41,94( (5,489
1,12( 2,657 3,37¢
— 66 10t
(19,499 (7,282 —
3,42¢ — —
2 72 254
— 9,33¢ 14,90¢



Payments on lines of credit
Payments on long term debt
Payments to minority interest

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yealugimg FCD)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (inclug@i)
Less: Cash held in assets held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:
Cash paid during the period for interest

Cash paid during the period for income taxes

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating andtimgeactivities:

Long-term receivable from Monsanto

Preferred stock received from investment in uncbaated business

Sale of land and equipment for note receivable

See accompanying notes.
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— — (14,904

— (1,990 (1,136)

(5117) (302) (329)

(15,46¢) 2,55¢ 2,27;

(18,160 42,03 7,64¢

62,55¢ 20,51¢ 12,87:

44,39¢ 62,55¢ 20,51¢

— — (5,355

$ 44,39¢ 62,55¢ 15,16:
$ 8 17¢ 31z
$ 85( 1,19¢ —
$ 80C 40C —
$ — 481 1,311
$ — — 38(




LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary dignificant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries ("Landedhe "Company") design, develop, manufacture, selidtemperature-activated and
other specialty polymer products for a varietyadd products, agricultural products, and licensadner applications. The Company sells
Intellicoat® coated seed products through its Landig, Inc. (“Landec Ag”) subsidiary and specialgchaged fresh-cut vegetables and whole
produce to retailers and club stores, primarilyhie United States and Asia through its Apio, Ifi&p{o”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemteatle accrual basis of accounting in accordaritteWS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec Corporation and its subsidiaries, Apio amidea Ag. All material inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

The Company follows FASB Interpretatida. 46R, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entiti€g"FIN 46R"), which addresses
the consolidation of variable interest entitiesIE$"). Under FIN 46R, arrangements that are notrotiad through voting or similar rights are
accounted for as VIEs. An enterprise is requiredaiosolidate a VIE if it is the primary beneficiarf/the VIE.

Under FIN 46R, a VIE is created whertl{g) equity investment at risk is not sufficienpermit the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial suppoonf other parties, or (ii) the entity's equity heiglas a group either: (a) lack direct or indirect
ability to make decisions about the entity throwgting or similar rights, (b) are not obligatedaiosorb expected losses of the entity if they
occur, or (c) do not have the right to receive expe residual returns of the entity if they ocdtian entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to
FIN 46R, the enterprise that is deemed to absaonhjarity of the expected losses or receive a mgjofiexpected residual returns of the VIE
considered the primary beneficiary and must codatdi the VIE.

Based on the provisions of FIN 46R,@wmpany has concluded that as a result of thedeand supply agreement between

Landec and Monsanto Company (see Note 2), Monsw#@ variable interest in the Company’s Intellicaating subsidiary, Landec Ag, and
therefore Landec Ag has been determined to be aME Company has also determined that it is thregyy beneficiary of Landec Ag and
therefore the accounts of Landec Ag are consolithaith the accounts of the Company.
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peer jinancial statements to conform to the curyearr presentation.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make
certain estimates and judgments that affect theuatsaeported in the financial statements and apemying notes. The accounting estimates

that require management’s most significant, diffiesnd subjective judgments include revenue redagnisales returns and allowances;
recognition and measurement of current and deféneme tax assets and liabilities; the assessofeetoverability of long-lived assets; the
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

valuation of intangible assets and inventory; takiation and nature of impairments of investmeautst the valuation and recognition of stock-
based compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of corfaletors and require management to make judgme&htsanalysis of historical
and future trends, can require extended periodisnafto resolve, and are subject to change froriogeo period. The actual results may differ
from management’s estimates.

For instance, the carrying value of notes and aclksneceivable, are impacted by current markeésffior the related crops, weather
conditions and the fair value of the underlyingwség obtained by the Company, such as, liens apgrty and crops. The Company recogn
losses when it estimates that the fair value oféfeted crops or security is insufficient to cotler advance or note receivable.

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investmigatie accounts receivable, grower advances and neteivable are financial
instruments that potentially subject the Compangaiacentrations of credit risk. Corporate polieyits, among other things, the amount of
credit exposure to any one issuer and to any qmedf investment, other than securities issueduargnteed by the U.S. government. The
Company routinely assesses the financial strerfgthisiomers and growers and, as a consequenceydéelhat trade receivables, grower
advances and notes receivable credit risk expastimaited. Credit losses for bad debt are provifedn the consolidated financial statements
through a charge to operations. A valuation allovesis provided for known and anticipated credisé&ss The recorded amounts for these
financial instruments approximate their fair value.

Several of the raw materials used to manufactieeCmpany’s products are currently purchased framngle source, including some
monomers used to synthesize Intelimer® polymerssahdtrate materials for the production of Intelipackagingised on a multitude of Ap
value-added products.

During the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, saldhécCompany’s top five customers accounted for@pmately 47% of total
revenue, with the top customer, Costco Wholesakp@ation from the Food Products Technology segneatounting for approximately 20%
of total revenues. In addition, approximately 302the Company'’s total revenues were derived froodpct sales to international customers,
none of whom individually accounted for more th&f &f total revenues. As of May 25, 2008, Costco Wéale Corporation represented
approximately 19% of total accounts receivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2007, saldhécCompany’s top five customers accounted for@pmately 50% of total
revenue, with the top customers, Costco Wholesatp@ation and Sam'’s Club from the Food Productshielogy segment, accounting for
approximately 21% and 10%, respectively, of totalnues. In addition, approximately 28% of the Canys total revenues were derived
from product sales to international customers, rafnghom individually accounted for more than 5%athl revenues. As of May 27, 2007,
Costco Wholesale Corporation and Sam’s Club reptedeapproximately 20% and 11%, respectively, t#ltaccounts receivable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment wkenevents or changes in circumstances indicatdlba carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets issorea by comparison of the carrying amount of #setto the net undiscounted future cash
flow expected to be generated from the assetelfuture undiscounted cash flows are not sufficiemecover the carrying value of the assets,

the assets’ carrying value is adjusted to fair @alu

The Company regularly evaluates its long-lived tssB® indicators of possible impairment. To daie,mpairment has been recorded.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summary dsignificant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primariynposed of marketable debt securities, commereiat-trade payables and
grower advances, and notes receivable, as wedingsterm notes receivables and debt instrumentsshart-term instruments, the historical
carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fdirevd-air values for longerm financial instruments not readily marketabie estimated base
upon discounted future cash flows at prevailingketinterest rates. Based on these assumptionggaarent believes the fair market values
of the Company'’s financial instruments are not mally different from their recorded amounts asvdy 25, 2008.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make
required payments and sales discounts. The allesviamaoubtful accounts is based on review of therall condition of accounts receivable
balances and review of significant past due acaodrite allowance for doubtful accounts is basedpatific identification of past due amou
and a general reserve for accounts over 90-daysipas The changes in the Compangllowances for doubtful accounts are summariaetie
following table (in thousands).

Additions charged

Balance at beginning to costs and Balance at end of
of period expenses Deductions period
Year ended May 28, 2006 Allowance for doubtful acds
receivable and notes receivable $ 34t $ 1C $ (135 $ 22C
Year ended May 27, 2007 Allowance for doubtful acus
receivable and notes receivable $ 22C $ 64 $ (78) $ 20¢€
Year ended May 25, 2008 Allowance for doubtful acus
receivable and notes receivable $ 20€ $ -3 (37 % 16¢

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recognized when ihgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etitktdhas transferred, the price
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reaably assured. Allowances are established for estichuncollectible amounts, product retu
and discounts.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance fi#ff Accounting Bulletin No. 10/Revenue Recognition (a replacement of SAB
101),(SAB 104). Initial license fees are deferred anadired over the period of the agreement to revevuen a contract exists, the fee is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reaably assured. Noncancellable, nonrefundable leésss are recognized over the researct
development period of the agreement, as well atetine of any related supply agreement entereddot@urrently with the license when the
risk associated with commercialization of a prodagton-substantive at the outset of the arrangémen

Contract revenue for research and development (R&Bjcorded as earned, based on the performaqueements of the contract.

Non-refundable contract fees for which no further perfance obligations exist, and there is no comtigimvolvement by the Company, are
recognized on the earlier of when the paymentseareived or when collection is assured.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Other Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshithree months or less from date of purchase tonityaas cash equivalents and
consists mainly of certificate of deposits, monegrket funds and U.S. Treasuries. Short-term mabketecurities consist of certificates of
deposit that are FDIC insured with original maiastof more than three months at the date of pgechad less than one year from the date of
the balance sheet. The Company classifies all skhirities with readily determined market value$aasilable for sale” in accordance with
SFAS No. 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgS8ecuritiesThese investments are classified as marketablgigeswn
the consolidated balance sheet as of May 25, 260&ee carried at fair market value. Unrealizedhgaind losses are reported as a component
of shareholders’ equity and were immaterial indlsgear 2008. The cost of debt securities is adfusir amortization of premiums and
discounts to maturity. This amortization is recardie interest income. Realized gains and lossd¢bh@sale of available-for-sale securities are
also recorded to interest income and were immafterfésscal year 2008. The cost of securities seldased on the specific identification
method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (ushwy first-in, firstout method) or market. As of May 25, 2008 and M&y 200"
inventories consisted of (in thousands):

May 25, May 27,
2008 2007
Finished goods $ 2,94¢ % 2,27:
Raw materials 4,38( 4,527
Inventories, net $ 732¢ % 6,80(

If the cost of the inventories exceeds their exgeeharket value, provisions are recorded currdaotlyhe difference between the cost
and the market value. These provisions are detedhtiased on specific identification for unusableeimtory and an additional reserve, based
on historical losses, for inventory consideredéaibeable.

Advertising Expense

Prior to the sale of FCD on December 1, 2006, tben@any deferred certain costs related to direqienese advertising of Landec
Ag'’s hybrid corn seeds. Such costs were amortized periods (less than one year) that correspotitetestimated revenue stream of the
advertising activity. Advertising expenditures fandec Ag and Apio that are not direct-responsedbements are expensed as incurred.
Advertising expense for the Company for fiscal ge2008, 2007 and 2006 was $474,000, $205,000 abddillion, respectively. The amount
of deferred advertising included in prepaid expere® other current assets at both May 25, 2008/&yd27, 2007 was zero.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Notes and Advances Receivable

Apio has made advances to produce growers foramdpharvesting costs and to the buyer of a frait@ssing facility. Notes and
advances receivable related to operating activatiedor the sourcing of crops for Apio’s businass notes and advances receivable related to
investing activities are for financing transactiovigh third parties. Typically operating advances paid off within the growing season (less
than one year) from harvested crops. Advancesuligtgaid during the current growing season areveoted to interest bearing obligations,
evidenced by contracts and notes receivable. Tinetss and advances receivable are secured by fgeHéns on land and/or crops and have
terms that range from twelve to sixty months. Noteeivable are periodically reviewed (at leastrtprly) for collectibility. A reserve is
established for any note or advance deemed toenfitlly collectible based upon an estimate of twpaosalue or the fair value of the security
for the note or advance.

Related Party Transactions

Apio provides cooling and distributing services famrms in which the Chairman of Apio (the “Apio Giman”) has a financial interest and
purchases produce from those farms. Apio also msehproduce from Beachside Produce LLC for satirt parties. Beachside Produce is
owned by a group of entities and persons that symoelduce to Apio including the Apio Chairman. Reues and the resulting accounts
receivable and cost of product sales and the regudtcounts payable are classified as related giarhs in the accompanying financial
statements as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007aritie years ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007Mag 28, 2006.

Apio leases, for approximately $306,000 on a curammual basis, agricultural land that is ownedhgyApio Chairman. Apio, in turn,
subleases that land at cost to growers who argatiblil to deliver product from that land to Apio ¥atue added products. There is generally no
net statement of income impact to Apio as a redutiese leasing activities but Apio creates a guoiged source of supply for the value added
business. Apio has loss exposure on the leasingtadd the extent that it is unable to subledse land. For the years ended May 25, 2008,
May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006, the Company subteak®f the land leased from the Apio Chairman eewkived sublease income of
$344,000, $504,000 and $554,000, respectively, misisubstantially equal to the amount the Compaaigl to lease that land for such periods.

Apio's domestic commodity vegetable business whktedBeachside Produce, effective June 30, 2088.Apio Chairman is a 12.5
owner in Beachside Produce. During fiscal years82@007 and 2006, the Company recognized reverfukk ® million, $83,000 and
$103,000, respectively, from the sale of produztBeachside Produce and royalty revenues of $31F09,000 and $264,000, respectively,
from the use by Beachside Produce of Apimademarks. The related accounts receivable Beathside Produce are classified as related
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheai§ May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007.

At May 27, 2007, the Apio Chairman held a 6% owhgrsnterest in Apio Cooling LP (“Apio Cooling”)a limited partnership
which Apio is the general partner and majority ownéth a 60% ownership interest. During the firstagter of fiscal year 2008, the A
Chairman withdrew from Apio Cooling. The $227,000eal to the Apio Chairman as of May 27, 2007, whigs included in the minori
interest liability at May 27, 2007, was paid inlfduring fiscal year 2008.

All related party transactions are monitored quértey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Experdifor major improvements are capitalized whélgairs and maintenance are
charged to expense. Depreciation is expensed taighd-line basis over the estimated useful livEthe respective assets, generally three to
thirty years for buildings and leasehold improvetseand three to seven years for furniture and féducomputers, capitalized software,

machinery, equipment and autos. Leasehold impromesvage amortized over the lesser of the econdfeiof the improvement or the life of
the lease on a straight-line basis.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Company capitalizes software development dosisternal use in accordance with Statement dfitim 98-1, "Accounting for
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtainethternal Use" ("SOP 98-1"). Capitalization of software develogmhcosts begins in the
application development stage and ends when tle izgglaced into service. The Company amortizeb sosts using the straight-line basis
over estimated useful lives of three to seven yé&idre Company did not capitalized any software tbgpraent costs during fiscal years 2008 or
2007.

Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued Statements of Financial Accounting &tedslNo. 141Business
Combinations and No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssgSFAS 142), effective for fiscal years beginningeaDecember 15, 2001.
Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible asdetsmed to have indefinite lives are no longer dizexd but are subject to annual impairrr
tests in accordance with the Statements. Othemgitiée assets will continue to be amortized oveirtbseful lives.

The Company is required under SFAS 142 to revieadgdll and indefinite lived intangible assets aideannually. During fiscal year
2008, the Company completed its annual impairmeview. The review is performed by grouping thebuwik value of all londived assets fc
reporting entities, including goodwill and othetaingible assets, and comparing this value to tlaeck estimated fair value. The determination
of fair value is based on estimated future disceditiash flows related to these long-lived asséts.discount rate used was based on the risks
associated with the reporting entities. The deteation of fair value was performed by managemehé feview concluded that the fair value
of the reporting entities exceeded the carryingealf their net assets and thus no impairment ehaes warranted as of May 25, 2008.

Equity Investment in Non-Public Company

The Company'’s equity investment of $1.8 millia a non-public company is carried at cost arfjdsteld for impairment losses, if
any. Since there is no readily available marketi@ahformation, the Company periodically reviewis hvestment to determine if any other
than temporary declines in value have occurreddandhe financial stability and viability of thempany. To date, no impairment has been
recorded.

Deferred Revenue

Cash received in advance of services performeddjpally revenues related to upfront license fege)recorded as deferred revenue.
At May 25, 2008, $8.3 million has been recognizea diability for deferred license fee revenues $8#3,000 for advances from customers
and on ground lease payments from growers. At M@y®007, $10.3 million has been recognized ashilitiafor deferred license fee revenues
and $160,000 for advances on ground lease payrfrenigyrowers.

Minority Interest

In connection with the acquisition of Apio, Landsmuired Apio’s 60% general partner interest incA@boling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the comdaled financial statements of Landec for all pgsipresented. The minority interest balance
of $1.6 million, at May 25, 2008 is comprised oé fimited partners’ interest in Apio Cooling. Theénority interest balance of $1.8 million at
May 27, 2007 is comprised of $1.6 million of lindteartners’ interest in Apio Cooling and $261,00¢hird party ownership in Apio which
was repurchased by the Company during fiscal yé@8 Zsee Note 5).
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using théitiamethod. Under this method, deferred tax &saed liabilities are determin
based on differences between financial reportirdytar bases of assets and liabilities and are me@sising enacted tax rates and laws that
will be in effect when the differences are expedteteverse. In evaluating the Company’s abilitydoover its deferred tax assets, managemen
considered all available positive and negative @vi@ including the Company’s past results of opmratand its forecast of future taxable
income in the jurisdictions in which Landec hasragiens. The Company records a valuation allowdoceduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that is expected to be realized on a mkedylithan-not basis. A deferred tax expense refulta the change in the net deferred tax
asset or liability between periods.

Effective May 28, 2007, the Company adopted FASBrpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&s$n
accordance with FIN 48, paragraph 19, the Compasydecided to classify interest and penaltieseeéltd uncertain tax positions as a
component of its provision for income taxes.

The Company is subject to routine audits by fedanal state tax authorities that may result in &mfufid tax liabilities. Several factors
drive the calculation of the Company’s tax lialg including, (i) the expiration of various stasibf limitations, (ii) changes in tax law and
regulations, (iii) issuance of tax rulings, and @ettlements with tax authorities. Changes inafrtyese factors may result in adjustments ir
Company’s liabilities, which would impact the Comp& reported financial results.

Per Share Information

Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statéie. 128, "Earnings Per Sharé (SFAS 128) requires the presentation of basic
and diluted earnings per share. Basic earningstpme excludes any dilutive effects of options,rauais and convertible securities and is
computed using the weighted average number of camshare outstanding. Diluted earnings per shatectsfthe potential dilution if
securities or other contracts to issue common si@rle exercised or converted into common stockutBd common equivalent shares consist
of stock options using the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation dfittd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006
Numerator:
Net income $ 1354: $ 29,18¢ % 8,651
Less: Minority interest in income of subsidiary — (77¢) (55€)
Net income for diluted net income per sh $ 1354: $ 28,41. % 8,09t

Denominator:

Weighted average shares for basic net income pee sh 26,06¢ 25,26( 24,55
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 86¢€ 1,29¢ 1,104
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 26,93¢ 26,55¢ 25,65
Diluted net income per share $ 05C % 107 $ 0.32

Options to purchase 96,300, 81,030 and 276,312slrCommon Stock at a weighted average exerdise @f $13.32, $8.86 and
$6.70 per share were outstanding during fiscalyyeaded May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2@3fpectively, but were not included
in the computation of diluted net income per sh@eause the optionskercise price were greater than the average mpricet of the Commc
Stock and, therefore, the effect would be antidikit
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cost of Sales

The Company includes in cost of sales all the cedtded to the sale of products in accordance gétierally accepted accounting
principles. These costs include the following: naaterials (including produce, seeds and packagdigct labor, overhead (including indirect
labor, depreciation, and facility related costs) ahipping and shipping related costs.

Research and Development Expenses

Costs related to both research contracts and Coyrfpaded research is included in research and dpusnt expenses. Costs to
fulfill research contracts generally approximate torresponding revenue. Research and developroststare primarily comprised of salaries
and related benefits, supplies, travel expensesarmbrate allocations.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

On May 29, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R;hwikia revision of SFAS No. 128ccounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”(“SFAS 123"), and supersedes APB No. 25, “Accounfor Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”). Amooidper items,
SFAS 123R requires companies to record compensatipense for stock-based awards issued to emplayekdirectors in exchange for
services provided. The amount of the compensatiperese is based on the estimated fair value adivegds on their grant dates and is
recognized over the required service periods. Tomany’s stock-based awards include stock optiantgrand restricted stock unit awards
(RSUs).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Companyiagghe intrinsic value method set forth in APBtB5calculate the compensation
expense for stock-based awards. The Company hasitédly set the exercise price for its stock ops equal to the market value on the grant
date. As a result, the options had no intrinsicigain their grant dates, and therefore the Comgahgot record any compensation expense
unless the terms of the stock options were subsglyuaodified. For RSUs, the calculation of compegitn expense under APB 25 and
SFAS 123R is similar except for the accountingttresnt for forfeitures as discussed below.

The Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modifiedgarctive transition method, which requires thdieation of the accounting
standard to (i) all stock-based awards issued @iter May 29, 2006 and (ii) any outstanding stbelsed awards that were issued but not
vested as of May 29, 2006. Accordingly, the Compmnognsolidated financial statements as of May2Z®6 and for the fiscal year themded
were accounted for under the provisions of APBIRfring the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008, the Camyprecognized stock-based
compensation expense of $871,000 which include® $B80 for restricted stock unit awards and $565f008tock option grants, respectively.
During the fiscal year ended May 27, 2007, the Camyprecognized stock-based compensation exper&&16{000 which included $160,000
for restricted stock unit awards and $455,000 foclsoption grants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @msgtion by income statement line item:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended
May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007
Research and development $ 148,000 $ 82,00(
Sales, general and administrative 723,00( 533,00(
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 871,000 $ 615,00(

The estimated fair value for stock options, whielbedmines the Company’s calculation of compensatiqrense, is based on the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. Upon the adaptf SFAS 123R, the Company changed its methadlotilating and recognizing the fair
value of stock-based compensation arrangemenitsttaight-line, single-option method. Compenseéirpense for all stock option and
restricted stock awards granted prior to May 29&2@ill continue to be recognized using the strilgie, multiple-option method. In addition,
SFAS 123R requires the estimation of the expeaiddifures of stock-based awards at the time afitgras a result, the Company uses
historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeituaiad records stock-based compensation expensdasrihose awards that are expected to vest
and revises those estimates in subsequent pefitidsactual forfeitures differ from the prior estites. In the pro-forma information required
under SFAS 123R for periods prior to May 29, 286, Company accounted for forfeitures as they aecdur
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Valuation Assumptions

As of May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2086, fair value of stock option grants was estimaisidg the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The following weighted aveeagssumptions were used:

Landec
Employee Stock Options
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended

May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006
Expected life (in years) 4.4C 4.27 4.5¢
Risk-free interest rate 5.02% 5.06% 4.37%
Volatility 0.4€ 0.51 0.52
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requiresittpit of highly subjective assumptions, includthg expected stock price
volatility. The change in the volatility in the €ial years ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and 282006 is a result of basing the volatility
on Landec's stock price.

The weighted average estimated fair value of Lamaeployee stock options granted at grant date rhariees during the fiscal years
ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2086 $5.74, $4.15 and $3.36 per share, respectiNelgtock options were granted above
or below grant date market prices during the figears ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May@86. The weighted average estim:
fair value of shares granted under the Landec Eyepl@tock Purchase Plan during the both fiscalsyeaded May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006
was $2.19. The Company terminated the Employeek$tacchase Plan on June 1, 2006.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estidnfatie value of the options is amortized to expemer the service period of the
options using the straight-line method. The Comfmpyo forma information follows (in thousands egtéor per share data):

Year Ended

May 28, 2006
Net income— as reported $ 8,651
Deduct:
Stock-based employee expense determined under $E2S (1,160
Pro forma net income $ 7,491
Basic net income per share — as reported $ 0.3%
Diluted net income per share — as reported $ 0.32
Basic pro forma net income per share $ 0.31
Diluted pro forma net income per share $ 0.27
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, FASB’s EITF reached a consensussue ISo. 06-3, How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to
Governmental Authorities Should be Presented irirtheme Statemerit EITF Issue 06-3 provides accounting guidancerdimg the
presentation of taxes assessed by a governmeti@iriy on a revenue producing transaction betwaesaller and a customer such as sales anc
use taxes. EITF Issue 06-3 was effective for figealrs beginning after December 15, 2006. The &mlopid not have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or resolt operations. The Company records the expemsafes and use taxes to general and
administrative expenses.

In July 2006, FASB issued FIN 48Atcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an lptetation of FASB Statement No. 109
which prescribes a recognition threshold and measent process for recording in the financial sta&teisiuncertain tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 reguihat a company recognize the financial stateefgedts of a tax position when there is a
likelihood of more than 50 percent, based on thbriieal merits, that the position will be sustaing@dn examination. It also provides guidance
on the derecognition, classification, interest padalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamnd transition requirements for uncertain tax
positions. The accounting provisions of FIN 48 weffective for the Company beginning January 1,720he adoption of FIN 48 did not have
a significant effect on the Company’s consoliddtedncial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157qif Value Measurements SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expandsld&oe about fair value measurements. SFAS Nodb®&s not require new fair value
measurements but provides guidance on how to me&asiuvalue by providing a fair value hierarchydgo classify the source of information.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years begimnaiter November 15, 2007. However, on Februan2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
(“FSP”) FAS No. 157-2 which delays the effectivaedtor all non-financial assets and liabilities eptthose that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value in the financial statements on a reagrfdasis (at least annually). FSP 157- 2 defergffleetive date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interimguigiwithin the fiscal years for items within the@pge of this FSP. Effective for fiscal year
2009, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 157, exceyit applies to those non-financial assets andfimamcial liabilities as noted in FSP157-

2. The Company does not expect such adoption te aamaterial effect on its consolidated financ@ifion, results of operations or cash
flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15Bhé Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities— Including
an amendment of FASB Statement No..18AS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measwany financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value that are not currently requitetbe measured at fair value. Subsequent adjussnteethe fair value of the financial
instruments and liabilities an entity elects torgat fair value will be recognized in earnings A&FNo. 159 also establishes additional
disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 159 is effedtivdiscal years beginning after November 15, 200ith early adoption permitted provided
the entity also elects to apply the provisions BAS No. 157. The Company is currently evaluatingethibr it is going to adopt the fair value
election under this standard..

The FASB issued SFAS No. 141R (revised 200Business Combinationswhich significantly changes the financial accougtand
reporting for business combination transaction®ASNo. 141R requires the acquiring entity in a hass combination to recognize all (and
only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumede transaction and establishes the acquisitiva fair value as the measurement objectiv
all assets acquired and liabilities assumed insinlegs combination. Certain provisions of this déad will, among other things, impact the
determination of acquisition-date fair value of sleration paid in a business combination (inclgdiontingent consideration); exclude
transaction costs from acquisition accounting; eémahge accounting practices for acquired contingsnecquisition-related restructuring
costs, in-process research and development, indieation assets, and tax benefits. For the Comp8R®3S No. 141R is effective for business
combinations occurring after December 31, 2008. Chmpany is currently evaluating the future impaotd disclosures of this standard.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentation, and Summargf Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofn€iabAccounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 16a\Nbdncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial StatementsSFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bull¢tiRB”) No. 51, “ Consolidated Financial
Statement$ and establishes accounting and reporting stasdardthe noncontrolling interest (minority inteteis a subsidiary. This statement
requires the reporting of all noncontrolling inteieas a separate component of stockholders’ edéyeporting of consolidated net income
(loss) as the amount attributable to both the gaaed the noncontrolling interests and the sepatistdosure of net income (loss) attributabl
the parent and to the noncontrolling interestaddition, this statement provides accounting apdnténg guidance related to changes in
noncontrolling ownership interests. Other thanrporting requirements described above which regeitrospective application, the
provisions of SFAS No. 160 are to be applied prospely in the first annual reporting period begimmon or after December 15, 2008. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had nantmoding interests on its consolidated finanattements. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of this standard, but wowdtlexpect it to have a material impact on its ctidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified the EITF cosseson EITF Issue No. 07-1Atcounting for Collaborative Arrangemeritthat
discusses how parties to a collaborative arrange@adrich does not establish a legal entity withiicls arrangement) should account for
various activities. The consensus indicates thstsdacurred and revenues generated from trangaotigh third parties (i.e. parties outside of
the collaborative arrangement) should be reporetthé collaborators on the respective line itemh@ir income statements pursuant to EITF
Issue No. 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal Versus BenaAgent” Additionally, the consensus provides that income
statement characterization of payments betweepdheipants in a collaborative arrangement shbeldased upon existing authoritative
pronouncements; analogy to such pronouncements ikithin their scope; or a reasonable, rationadl @onsistently applied accounting policy
election. For the Company, EITF Issue No. 07-Iffiscéive beginning January 1, 2009 and is to bdiagpetrospectively to all periods
presented for collaborative arrangements existingfahe date of adoption. The Company is curregsigluating the impact of this standard on
its consolidated financial statements.

2. Sale of Fielder’s Choice Direct and License Agesnent

On December 1, 2006, Landec sold its direct mangeind sales seed company FCD, which includeditidef’s Choice Direc? and
Heartland Hybrid® brands, to American Seeds, Inc. (ASI), a wholly edisubsidiary of Monsanto Company. The acquisipiooe for FCD
was $50 million in cash paid at the close. In @dditthe Company could have earned up to an additi5 million based on FCD results for
the twelve months ended May 31, 2007. None of #ra-eut was earned. During the fiscal year 200dea recorded income from the sale,
net of direct expenses and bonuses, of $22.7 millide income that was recorded is equal to tHereifice between the fair value of FCD of
$40 million and its net book value, less directisglexpenses and bonuses. In accordance with giljnaccepted accounting principles, the
portion of the $50 million of proceeds in excesshef fair value of FCD, or $10 million, will be attated to the technology license agreement
described below and will be recognized as reveatably over the five year term of the technologgftise agreement or $2 million per year
beginning December 1, 2006. The fair value wasrdeted by management with the assistance of arpemtdent appraiser.

-59-




2. Sale of Fielder’s Choice Direct and License Ageenent (continued)

The following summarizes sales proceeds allocatele technology license agreement and the netriadoom the sale of FCD (in
thousands):

Cash received at close $ 50,00(
Fair market value of FCD 40,00(
Proceeds allocated to technology license agreefgnt $ 10,00(
Fair market value of FCD $ 40,00(
Less: Cost basis of assets sold net of liabilgiesumed (14,85¢)
Less: Direct expenses of sale (557)
Net gain from sale of FCD 24,58
Less: Bonuses paid to employees as a result cfdiee (1,919
Income from sale of FCD $ 22,66¢

(1) Represents a deferred gain at the closingwlaieh will be recognized as revenue over 5 yeardeasribed below.

As a result of the sale of FCD, the Company rembateincome tax expense of $2.5 million in fisoadéy2007 for state income taxes
and federal AMT.

On December 1, 2006, Landec also entered intoeayfdar co-exclusive technology license and polysogply agreement (“the
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company for the use afidlec’s Intellicoat polymer seed coating technology. Under the ternth@fAgreement,
Monsanto will pay Landec Ag $2.6 million per yearexchange for (1) a co-exclusive right to use learslintellicoat temperature-activated
seed coating technology worldwide during the lieepsriod, (2) the right to be the exclusive glatses and marketing agent for the Intellicoat
seed coating technology, and (3) the right to pasetthe stock of Landec Ag at any time during e year term of the Agreement. Monsanto
will also fund all operating costs, including aitéllicoat research and development, product development amdeplacement capital costs
during the five year agreement period. For theafiyears 2008 and 2007, Landec recognized $5.4omiind $2.7 million, respectively, in
revenues from the Agreement.

The Agreement also provides for a fee payable tudka Ag of $4 million if Monsanto elects to ternti@géhe agreement or $8 million
if Monsanto elects to purchase the stock of Lamsigdf the purchase option is exercised beforefifitte anniversary of the Agreement, or if
Monsanto elects to terminate the Agreement, allahlicense fees and supply payments that haveeei paid to Landec Ag will become due
upon the purchase. If Monsanto does not exerdgauitchase option by the fifth anniversary of thellicoat agreement, Landec Ag will
receive the termination fee and all rights to thiellicoat seed coating technology will revert to Landec. Adaugly, Landec Ag will receive
minimum guaranteed payments of $17 million forise fees and polymer supply payments over fivesyea$21 million in maximum
payments if Monsanto elects to purchase the stbtkmdec Ag. The minimum guaranteed payments aedidferred gain of $2 million per
year described above will result in Landec recoiggizevenue and operating income of $5.4 millionyesar for fiscal years 2008 through 2(
and $2.7 million per year for fiscal years 2007 @0d2. The incremental $4 million to be receivethia event Monsanto exercises the purc
option has been deferred and will be recognizedhupe exercise of the purchase option. The fauealf the purchase option was determined
by management to be less than the amount of tregrddfrevenue.

If Monsanto elects to purchase the stock of Lamsigca gain or loss on the sale of the stock of leen#élg will be recognized at the

time of purchase. If Monsanto exercises its purelmtion, Landec and Monsanto will enter into a h@wg-term supply agreement in which
Landec will continue to be the exclusive supplieintellicoat polymer materials to Monsanto.
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2. Sale of Fielder’s Choice Direct and License Ageenent (continued)

In conjunction with the sale of FCD, Landec purdthall of the outstanding common stock and optafrisandec Ag not owned by
Landec at the fair market value of each share al$ @ptions had been exercised as of Decembeddg.2lhe fair market value was $7.4 mill
which was funded with proceeds from the sale of FE&fer the purchase, Landec Ag became a whollyehsubsidiary of Landec. In
accordance with SFAS 123R, this purchase did reatirén additional compensation expense to the Gompas all of the options purchased
were fully vested at the time of the purchase &edconsideration paid was equal to the fair valuéhe date of the purchase. The repurcha
Landec Ag’s outstanding common stock and options rgaorded to retained earnings as the repurcltzsered after the sale of FCD to
Monsanto. At May 25, 2008, $4.8 million of the $7lion repurchase was reclassified from retairachings to goodwill in accordance with
SFAS 141 to reflect the amount of the repurchasedmmon stock that was subsequently determinée @ repurchase of minority interest.

Excluding the $2.7 million in revenues from the Agment, Landec Ag revenues for the fiscal yeard 20@ 2006 were $131,000 ¢
$34.1 million, respectively. The net operating &sfor Landec Ag, excluding the income from the sdIFCD and the $2.7 million in license
fees from the Agreement, for fiscal year 2007 w58 million compared to net operating income dd$800 in fiscal year 2006.

3. License Agreements

On December 23, 2005, Landec entered into an axeldkensing agreement with Aesthetic Sciencesp@ation (‘Aesthetit
Sciences”),a medical device company. Aesthetic Sciences paiddéc an upfront license fee of $250,000 for thelusive rights to us
Landec's Intelimef] materials technology for the development of derfill@rs worldwide. Landec will also receive roy&s on the sale
products incorporating Landexctechnology. In addition, the Company receivedeshaf preferred stock valued at $1.3 million whiepresen
a 19.9% ownership interest in Aesthetic Sciencesfalay 25, 2008. The $1.3 million is included ither assets in the accompany
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The $1.6 million otigaleceived under this agreement was recorde@esslng revenue in fiscal year 200!
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Opesatince Landec has no further obligations urtdsragreement.

As part of the original agreement with Aesthetiée8ces, Landec was to receive additional shares thp® completion of a speci
milestone. On November 22, 2006, that milestone mas and as a result Landec received an additi®d@J000 shares of preferred st
valued at $481,000. The receipt of the additior@0,800 preferred shares did not change Larsd#8'.9% ownership interest in Aesth
Sciences. The $481,000 is included in other asmetise accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheetwasdrecorded as licensing reve
during fiscal year 2007 in the accompanying Comsdid Statements of Operations since Landec hafurttter obligations under tt
agreement.

On March 14, 2006, Landec entered into an exclugiease and research and development agreemdnfwiProducts and
Chemicals, Inc. Landec received an upfront licemé$ée of $800,000 at close and rights to receiveougn additional $1.6 million of license
payments to be paid in quarterly installments di&Q00 each during years two and three of the aggaefor the exclusive rights to use
Landec's Intelimer materials technology in spediBds worldwide. The first installment for $200@was received during the fourth quarte
fiscal year 2007. In addition, Landec receivedlase $100,000 for technology transfer work that pagormed by Landec prior to May 28,
2006. Landec will provide research and developrsapport to Air Products for three years with a naliaption for two additional years. The
license fees are being recognized as license revever a three year period beginning March 200@dgdition, in accordance with the
agreement, Landec will receive approximately 40%hefgross profit generated from the sale of prtslbg Air Products that incorporate
Landec’s Intelimer materials. In 2008, an amendmeat entered into by the Company whereby certaimi@ogy applications were re-
acquired as well as the elimination of an existingtract claim in order to refine the existing telaship. As a result, the Company recorded a
$600,000 expense to selling, general and admitiistraxpense during the year ended May 25, 2008.ddmpany recognized $800,000 in
license revenues under this agreement during Isathlfyear 2008 and 2007 and recognized $300,00A0glfiscal year 2006. During fiscal
years 2008 and 2007 the Company recognized $5280d$20,000, respectively, for its share of trasgprofits realized from the sale
Intelimer-based products by Air Products.
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3. License Agreements (continued)

On September 19, 2007, the Company amended itsslivg and supply agreement with Chiquita Brandsrhdtional, Inc.
(“Chiquita”). Under the terms of the amendment, ltbense for bananas has been expanded to inctidiamal exclusive fields using Landec’
BreatheWay® packaging technology, and a new exaugiense has been added for the sale and magladtewvocados using Landec’s
BreatheWay packaging technology. In exchange fpepaing the exclusive fields for bananas and addingw exclusive field for avocados,
the minimum gross profits to be received by Lanfilem the sale of BreatheWay packaging to Chiquitabfinanas and avocados will increase
to $2.9 million in fiscal year 2008 and to $2.2Imih in fiscal year 2009. In addition, the minimwgross profits the Company is to receive are
calculated and payable on a calendar quarter pasithe terms of the amended agreement. Accorditfgdyminimum amounts under the
amended agreement will be calculated each calepdater and thus will be due at the end of Marahg) September and December of each
year. During fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 bmpany recognized $2.9 million, $1.0 million ar&ll$,000, respectively, of gross prof
from the Chiquita licensing and supply agreement.

4, Insurance Settlement

On August 25, 2006 the Company received a cash @atyai $1.6 million from the settlement of insurardaims associated with a
fire that occurred at its Dock Resins facility iatffuary 2000. The settlement resulted in the Compaeording a reduction to selling, general
and administrative expenses of $1.3 million, netxgenses, during the Company’s first quartersafdi year 2007. In addition, $381,000 had
been placed in escrow pending the outcome of cediaputed professional fees. In September 20@6Ctmpany resolved the fee dispute and
paid professional fees of $227,000 from the es@andreceived the balance of $154,000 which the Gompecorded as a reduction to selling,
general and administrative expenses during thenskgoarter of fiscal year 2007.

5. Repurchase of Subsidiary Common Stock and Optien

On August 7, 2007, Landec repurchased all of thstanding common stock and options of Apio not aivbg Landec at the fair
market value of each share as if all options hahlexercised on that date. The fair market valparahase price for all of Apio’s common
stock and options not owned by Landec was $20.BomilAfter the repurchase, Apio became a whollyned subsidiary of Landec. In
accordance with SFAS 123R, this repurchase didesatlt in additional compensation expense to the@my as all of the options repurcha
were fully vested at the time of the repurchasethrdonsideration paid was equal to the fair valine repurchase of Apio options for $19.5
million was recorded as a reduction to equity drerepurchase of Apis’common stock not owned by Landec for $1.3 millias recorded t
goodwill in accordance with SFAS 141.
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6. Notes and Advances Receivable

May 25, May 27,
2008 2007

Notes and advances receivable at May 25, 2008 ay

27, 2007 consisted of the following (in thousands):
Note receivable due from buyer of fruit process

equipment in annual installments of $98 plus irteat

prime rate plus 1.0%, with final payment due Octdt@

2009, secured by purchased assets (2) $ 101 $ 20&
Note receivable due from grower in annual instafitaef

$33 plus interest at prime rate plus 1.0%, witkalfin

payment due December 31, 2007, unsecured (1) — 33
Advances to grower of $2 per acre to be recoveyed b

withholding proceeds derived from crops. Additional

advances of $60 on January 1 and July 1 to be esed

via weekly deductions of $2 from proceeds. Agreem:

ends December 27, 2008 (1) 27C —
Advances to a grower under agricultural subleassgini-

annualinstallments of $150, to be repaid at $12 per v

by withholding proceeds from crop produced on this

property. Leases expire October 31, 2009 (1) 13C 14C
Gross notes and advances receivable 501 37¢
Less allowance for doubtful notes - —
Net notes and advances receive 501 37¢
Less current portion of notes and advances reckeivab (507) (282)
Non-current portion of notes and advances receivable  $ 0 $ 96

(1) Represents notes and advances receivable atesbuiith operating activities.
(2) Represents notes and advances receivable atsbuwiith investing activities.

Interest income from interest bearing notes reddévéor the fiscal years ended May 25, 2008, May Z007 and May 28, 2006 w
$15,000, $52,000 and $89,000, respectively.

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the followimgtiousands):

Years of
Useful Life May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007
Land and building 15-30 $ 18,18: $ 16,78
Leasehold improvements 3-20 77t 1,031
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equipraed auto 3-7 21,97 20,38
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 301 45¢€
Construction in process 217 204
Gross property and equipment 41,44¢ 38,85°
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (20,149 (18,58))
Net property and equipment $ 21,30t $ 20,27(

Depreciation and amortization expense for the figears ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May286 was $3.2 million, $3
million and $3.2 million, respectively. Equipmentder capital leases, which is the security forrtiated lease obligation, at May 25, 2008 and
May 27, 2007 was $104,000 and $104,000, respegtiVék related accumulated amortization for equiphumder capital leases at May 25,
2008 and May 27, 2007 was $99,000 and $78,000ectisply. Amortization related to capitalized sodine was $400,000, $666,000 and
$661,000, respectively, for fiscal years ended 2ay2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006. The untmsal computer software costs at May
25, 2008 and May 27, 2007 were $278,000 and $594r@8pectively.
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8. Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fiseal years ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 aagt BB, 2006 by reportable
segment, are as follows (in thousands):

Food
Products Technology
Technology Licensing Total
Balance as of May 29, 2005 $ 21,23 $ 475¢ % 25,98’
Goodwill acquired during the period — 3,137 3,137
Reclassified to assets held for sale — (7,876 (7,876
Balance as of May 28, 2006 21,23 15 21,24¢
Goodwill acquired during the period 16¢ 1,05(C 1,21¢
Goodwill sold during the period — (1,06°) (1,06¢)
Balance as of May 27, 2007 21,40: — 21,40:
Goodwill acquired/reclassified during the period 1,172 4,78( 5,95;
Balance as of May 25, 2008 $ 22,57 $ 4,78C $ 27,35¢

Information regarding Landec’s other intangibleetsss as follows (in thousands):

Trademarks Other Total
Balance as of May 29, 2005 $ 11,57C $ 58 $ 11,62¢
Other intangibles acquired 1,70( 81C 2,51(
Reclassified to assets held for sale (5,042 (860) (5,902
Amortization expense — (8) (8)
Balance as of May 28, 2006 8,22¢ — 8,22¢
Amortization expense — — —
Balance as of May 27, 2007 8,22¢ — 8,22¢
Amortization expense — — —
Balance as of May 25, 2008 $ 8,22¢ $ — $ 8,22¢

9. Shareholders' Equity

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one votespare.

Convertible Preferred Stock
The Company has authorized two million shares efgured stock, and as of May 25, 2008 has no adsig preferred stock.
Common Stock, Stock Purchase Plans and Stock OptidPlans
At May 25, 2008, the Company had 2,527,514 comat@res reserved for future issuance under Lartdek sption plans.
On October 14, 2005, following shareholder appr@atahe Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Campthe 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “Plan”) became effective. The Plan replaced@ompany’s four then existing equity plans andinares remain available for grant under

these existing plans. Employees (including offizetensultants and directors of the Company anslibsidiaries and affiliates are eligible to
participate in the Plan.
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9. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

The Plan provides for the grant of stock optior#i{lmonstatutory and incentive stock options), lsgrants, stock units and stock
appreciation rights. Awards under the Plan wileb@&enced by an agreement with the Plan participgémder the Plan, 861,038 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock (“Shares”) were initiallyadable for awards, and as of May 25, 2008, 567 @86es were available for awards.
Under the Plan no recipient may be awarded anlgeofdllowing during any fiscal year: (i) stock apis covering in excess of 500,000 Shares;
(i) stock grants and stock units covering in exces250,000 Shares in the aggregate; or (iii)kstgapreciation rights covering more than
500,000 Shares. In addition, awards to non-empldyreetors are discretionary. However, a non-emgdoglirector may not be granted awards
covering in excess of 30,000 Shares in the aggeetjaing any fiscal year.

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Direstdlan”) provided that each person who becamera amployee director of the
Company, who had not received a previous grangraéeted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase@®0shares of Common Stock on the
date on which the optionee first became a non-eyeglalirector of the Company. Thereafter, on the ddeach annual meeting of the
shareholders each non-employee director was gramtedditional option to purchase 10,000 shar€xooaimon Stock if, on such date, he or
she had served on the Company’s Board of Diredtorat least six months prior to the date of suchual meeting. The exercise price of the
options was the fair market value of the Compa®@dsnmon Stock on the date the options were gra@ptions granted under this plan were
exercisable and vested upon grant.

The 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan authorthedBoard of Directors to grant non-qualified &toptions to employees,
including executive officers, and outside consukarf the Company. The exercise price of the ogtiwas equal to the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date the options geneted. Options were generally exercisable ugsting and generally vested ratably
over four years and were subject to repurchaseeifoésed before being vested.

The 1996 Stock Option Plan authorized the Boamigdctors to grant stock purchase rights, incengiieek options or non-statutory
stock options to Landec executives. The exercige f the stock purchase rights, incentive stqukoms and norstatutory stock options cot
be no less than 100% of the fair market value afdes’'s Common Stock on the date the options wexetgd. Options generally were
exercisable upon vesting, generally vested ratabdy four years and were subject to repurchaseeifoised before being vested.

The New Executive Stock Option Plan authorizedBbard of Directors to grant non-statutory stockiaps to officers of Landec or
officers of Apio or Landec Ag whose employment welich of those companies began after October B0. Zlhe exercise price of the non-
statutory stock options could be no less than 166#85%, for named executives and non-named exesutiespectively, of the fair market
value of Landec's Common Stock on the date th@wpgtivere granted. Options generally were exer@asapbn vesting, generally vested
ratably over four years and were subject to repasehf exercised before being vested.

Employee Stock Purchase Pldaine Company had an employee stock purchase plashvpleirmitted eligible employees to purchase
Common Stock, which may not exceed 10% of an enga®ycompensation, at a price equal to the low8566 of the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock at the beginning of therofeperiod or on the purchase date. The Compauei 869,271 shares under the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan prior to it being iteated on June 1, 2006.
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9. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)
Activity under all Landec Stock Option Plans isfaltows:

Stock-Based Compensation Activity

Restricted Stock Outstanding

Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted
RSU’s and Number Weighted Average
Options of Average Number of Exercise

Available Restricted  Grant Date Stock Price

for Grant Shares Fair Value Options (FairValue)
Balance at May 29, 2005 941,03¢ — — 4,122,491 $ 5.0¢
Additional shares reserved 861,03t — — — —
Granted (83,33)) 83: $ 7.5¢% 82,50( $ 6.6¢
Exercised — — — (1,027,71) $ 5.8%
Forfeited 59,76: — — (59,769 $ 6.3¢€
Terminated plans (920,800 — _ _ _
Balance at May 28, 2006 857,70! 83: $ 7.5t 3,117,511 $ 4.8¢
Granted (153,339 38,33t $ 8.8¢ 115,00( $ 8.8¢
Exercised — — — (1,163,23) $ 4.72
Forfeited 8,77¢ (8339 % 7.5¢ (7,945 $ 4.9¢
Plan shares expired (6,417) — — _
Balance at May 27, 2007 706,73: 38,33 $ 8.8¢ 2,061,33 $ 5.14
Granted (139,33) 34,83t $ 13.3Z 104,50( $ 13.3¢
Awarded/Exercised — (10,009 $ 8.8¢ (267,149 $ 4.57
Forfeited — — — (1,739 $ 3.8C
Balance at May 25, 2008 567,39t 63,16¢ $ 11.32 1,896,951 $ 5.6¢

Included in exercises for fiscal years 2008 andr2&@ 11,995 and 207,112 options, respectively viiese exercised through a net
share settlement transaction (no cash) to payhéoexercise price of the options and the relategstdue on the exercise.

The following table summarizes information concagnstock options outstanding and exercisable at By2008

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Aggregate  Number of Average
Exercise Number of Share: Contractual  Exercise Intrinsic Shares Exercise Aggregate
Prices Outstanding Life Price Value Exercisable Price Intrinsic Value
(in years)
$1.660 - $3.180 226,01: 4.0€ $ 2918% 1,159,44 226,01 $ 2918% 1,159,44
$3.250 - $3.375 266,59° 261% 3.37 % 1,245,00: 266,59 $ 337 % 1,245,00:
$ 3.400 - $3.700 206,14¢ 221% 347 % 942,08 206,14¢ $ 347 % 942,08’
$3.750 - $6.125 234,69: 24t $ 5.07$% 697,04 232,50¢ $ 5.0¢ $ 692,86¢
$6.130 - $6.130 262,00( 3.9¢ $ 6.15$  500,42( 224,50( $ 6.1: $ 428,79!
$ 6.563 - $6.750 300,00( 3.7C $ 6.6€ $  408,00( 300,00( $ 6.6¢ $ 408,00(
$6.790 - $8.860 297,00( 5.94 % 7779 80,19( 266,29¢ $ 764 % 90,51¢
$13.32-$13.32 104,50( 6.0¢ ¢ 13.32 $ — 39,71¢ ¢ 133 $ —
$ 1.660 - $13.32 1,896,95! 3.7¢ $ 5.6¢ $ 5,032,19 1,761,777t $ 53:%  4,966,72

At May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007 options to purenhg61,778 and 1,920,424 shares of Landec’s Con8tawk were vested,
respectively. No options have been exercised poideing vested.
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9. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pretax intrinsic value, basetherCompany’s closing stock price
of $8.04 on May 23, 2008, which would have beemwire by holders of stock options had all holddrstock options exercised their stock
options that were in-the-money as of that date. tdted number of in-the-money stock options exetois as of May 25, 2008, was
approximately 1.6 million shares. The aggregatensitc value of stock options exercised duringfikeal year 2008 was $1.8 million.

Shares Subject to Vesting

The following table summarizes the activity relgtio unvested stock option grants and RSUs duhadiscal year ended May 25,

2008:
Stock Options Restricted Stock
Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Fair
Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested at May 27, 2007 140,910 $ 3.7C 38,33t $ 8.3z
Granted 104,50 $ 5.74 34,83t $ 13.32
Vested/Awarded (108,50) $ 4.4c¢ (10,007 $ 6.7¢
Forfeited (1,739 $ 3.8C — —
Unvested at May 25, 2008 135,17: $ 4.7: 63,16¢ $ 11.32

As of May 25, 2008, there was $875,000 of totakengnized compensation expense related to unvegtety compensation awards
granted under the Company’s incentive stock plantal expense is expected to be recognized ovendighted-average period of 1.24 years.

As of May 25, 2008 the Company had reserved 2.bamishares of common stock for future issuanceeuitd current and former
stock plans.

Repurchase of Landec Ag Common Stock and Optidres.Company has reclassified $4.8 million and $filion from retaine:
earnings to goodwill and common stock, respectivieyreflect the amount of the repurchase of Lanigs common stock and options. -
reclassification had no impact on operations ferytbar ended May 25, 2008.

Apio Stock Planln connection with the acquisition of Apio, the Bdaf Directors of Landec authorized the establishtrof the 199
Apio Stock Option Plan ("1999 Plan"). Under the 9%8an, the Board of Directors of Apio could grantentive stock options or nastatuton
stock options to employees and outside consultdhts.exercise price of the incentive stock optiand nonstatutory stock options could be
less than 100% and 85%, respectively, of the fairket value of Apio's common stock as determinedpip's Board of Directors. Five millic
shares were authorized to be issued under this Plations were exercisable upon vesting and gdyeraested ratably over four years and v
subject to repurchase if exercised before beingede#\s of May 25, 2008, there were no options tanding under the 1999 Plan, the 1
Plan was terminated on August 7, 2007.

In May 2000, the 1999 Plan was terminated. All #xgsgrants remain outstanding, and no future gravilt be made from the plan.
Concurrently, the 2000 Apio Stock Option Plan ("@®an") was authorized by Apio's Board of Direstarhich authorized the issuance of
two million shares under the same terms and canditas the 1999 Plan. As of May 25, 2008, thereweroptions outstanding under the 2000
Plan, the 2000 Plan was terminated on August 77 286 discussed in Note 5, the Company repurchaléed the outstanding common stock
and options of Apio not owned by Landec on AugystG07.
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9. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

The following table summarizes activity under theidAStock Option Plan.

Outstanding Options

Options Weighted Averag

Available Number of Share Exercise Price

Balance at May 29, 2005 1,622,92! 2,327,32. % 2.1C
Options exercised — (50,15¢) $ 2.1C
Options forfeited 8,46¢ (8,469 $ 2.1C
Balance at May 28, 2006 1,631,39: 2,268,69! $ 2.1C
Options exercised — (24,500 $ 2.1C
Options forfeited 28,69t (28,699 ¢ 2.1C
Balance at May 27, 2007 1,660,09. 2,215,500 $ 2.1C
Plan shares expired (1,660,09) — —
Repurchased by Landec — (2,215,50) $ 10.77

Balance at May 25, 2008 — — —

10. Debt
Revolving Debt

Apio has a $7.0 million revolving line of credittiWells Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo"Pn September 1, 2007, Apio amende
revolving line of credit with Wells Fargo by exténd the term of the line to August 31, 2009. Ini&dd, the interest rate on the revolving line
of credit was reduced to either prime less 0.75%e1LIBOR adjusted rate plus 1.50%. The revolling of credit with Wells Fargo contains
certain restrictive covenants, which require Amiorteet certain financial tests, including minimwewdls of net income, maximum leverage
ratio, minimum net worth and maximum capital exgamés. Landec has pledged substantially all ofassets of Apio to secure the line of
credit with Wells Fargo. At May 25, 2008 , no amtauwere outstanding under the revolving line efddr Apio has been in compliance with
all loan covenants during fiscal year 2008.
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11. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of théofeing (in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006
Current:
Federal $ 1551 $ 62 $ 8
State 2,40¢ 1,832 3
Total 3,96¢ 2,45¢ 11
Deferred:
Federal 23¢ — —
State (844) — -
Total (612) — —
Income tax expense $ 3,35¢ % 2,45¢ $ 11

For fiscal year 2006 the income tax expense isided in other expense in the accompanying Condetidatatements of Income as
the amount was not material.

The actual provision for income taxes differs frtra statutory U.S. federal income tax rate as ¥adlgin thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006
Provision at U.S. statutory rate (1) $ 591/ $ 11,07¢ $ 2,94¢
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 1,15: 1,81¢ 50€
Change in valuation allowance (3,647 (20,02¢) (3,78¢
Tax credit carryforwards (510 (78) 37t
Other 44t (339 (31)
Total $ 3,35¢ $ 2,45¢ $ 11
(1) Statutory rate was 35% for fiscal years 2008 2007 and 34% for fiscal year 2006.
Significant components of deferred tax asaet liabilities consisted of the following (irotisands):
May 25,2008  May 27, 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ — $ 2,38t
Research and AMT credit carryforwards 62C 2,49¢
Accruals and reserves, not currently deductibledgr 3,912 1,46(
Stock-based compensation 361 19¢
Capitalized research and development 19€ 38
Gross deferred tax assets 5,08¢ 6,572
Less: valuation allowance — (2,379
Deferred tax assets 5,08¢ 4,19¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization (53 (611)
Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles (4,425 (3,58)
Deferred tax liabilities (4,479 (4,199
Net deferred tax asse $ 611 $ —
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

Valuation allowances are reviewed each period tax gurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to analyzéether there is sufficient positive
or negative evidence to support a change in judgaigout the realizability of the related deferrad assets. During the second quarter of the
year ended May 25, 2008, the Company releasedatliation allowance on the net deferred tax aspétaarily as a result of achievir
sustained profitability from continuing operations.

As of May 25, 2008, the Company had federal ant stat operating loss carryforwards of approxinya$24.6 million and $5.5
million, respectively. These losses expire in défg periods through 2028, if not utilized. Such owgerating losses consist of excess tax
benefits from employee stock options exercisesteawve not been recorded in the Company’s deferseddsets in accordance with FAS 123
(R). The Company will record a credit to additiopald in capital as and when such excess tax lisragé ultimately realized.

The Company also had federal and state tax craedigforwards of approximately $1.8 million and $inlion, respectively. The
research and development tax credit carryforwaxgéein different periods through 2028 for fedepalposes and have an unlimited
carryforward period for state purposes. Certainctaxlit carryovers are attributable to excess tmelits from employee stock option exercises
and have not been recorded in the Company’s deftaseassets in accordance with FAS 123(R). Thegaomy will record a credit to
additional paid in capital as and when such extesbenefits are ultimately realized.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48A\¢counting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes’ (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting fomgertainty in income taxes recognized in an eniseg{s financial statements in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountiten8ards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes"A'$-109"). This interpretation
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureatgiftute for the financial statement recognitiond aneasurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 aftswigdes guidance on derecognition of tax benefisssification on the balance sheet, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disate, and transition.

The Company adopted FIN 48 effective May 28, 2@0va result of the implementation of FIN 48, then@any did not recognize a
cumulative adjustment to the May 28, 2007 balaricgetained earnings as the amount was deemed imialate

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofninrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inusands):

Balance at May 27, 2007 $ 277
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 86
Additions based on tax positions related to therprear 31E
Settlements —
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations —
Balance at May 25, 2008 $ 67¢

As of May 25, 2008, the total amount of net unretpgd tax benefits is $678,000, of which, $599,GD6:cognized, would affect the
effective tax rate. The Company accrues interedtp@malties related to unrecognized tax benefifsiprovision for income taxes. Given the
Company'’s historical net operating loss positidwe, total amount of penalties and interest is ndene as of May 25, 2008. Additionally, the
Company does not expect a material changes imitecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months.

Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Companyulject to examination for tax years 1992 forwandU.S. tax purposes. The
Company was also subject to examination in vargate jurisdictions for tax years 1996 forward, @ofiwhich were individually material.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
Landec leases facilities and equipment under oipgrégase agreements with various terms and camgitiwhich expire at various

dates through 2012. The approximate future mininesse payments under these operating leases, exgladd leases, at May 25, 2008 are
as follows (in thousands):

Amount
FY2009 $ 71¢
FY2010 47¢
FY2011 25¢
FY2012 11
FY2013 _
$ 1,46t

Rent expense for operating leases, including mnthonth arrangements was $1.5 million for thedigear ended May 25, 2008,
$1.4 million for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2@ $1.4 million for the fiscal year ended May 2806.

Land Leases

Landec, through its Apio subsidiary, also leasesi@and under various non-cancelable leases expinraugh October 2009. Landec
subleases substantially all of the farmland to gn®wn an annual basis. The subleases are genswalgancelable and expire through October
2009. The approximate future minimum leases anteagb amounts receivable under farmland leasesat2®, 2008 are $435,000 through
fiscal year 2010.

Rent income for land leases net of sublease riendsiding month to month arrangements was $0 ferfigcal year ended May 25,
2008 and $0 for the fiscal year ended May 27, 2&&nt expense for land leases net of sublease nedisding month to month arrangements
was $25,000 for the fiscal year ended May 28, 2006.

Employment Agreements

Landec has entered into employment agreementsceithin key employees. These agreements providddse employees to receive
incentive bonuses based on the financial performahcertain divisions in addition to their annbake salaries. The accrued incentive bor
amounted to $259,000 at May 25, 2008 and $631,00ag 27, 2007.

Licensing Agreement

In fiscal year 2001, the Company entered into apegent for the exclusive worldwide rights to marg@pes under certain brand
names. Under the terms of the amended agreemean@sad in fiscal year 2004), the Company is obligéabemake annual payments of
$100,000 for fiscal years 2009 through 2012.

Purchase Commitments

At May 25, 2008, the Company was committed to paseh$2.2 million of produce during fiscal year 2@®@ccordance with
contractual terms. Payments of $3.3 million werelenm fiscal year 2008 under these arrangements.
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13. Employee Savings and Investment Plans
The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan which is aviaitebsubstantially all of the Company’s employees.

Landec’s Corporate Plan, which is available td_alhdec employees (“Landec Plan”), allows partictpdn contribute from 1% to
50% of their salaries, up to the Internal RevenewiSe (IRS) limitation into designated investmémtids. Beginning in fiscal year 2001, the
Company amended the plan so that it contributesnaount equal to 50% of the participants’ contribatup to 3% of the participants’ salahy.
May 2003, the Company again amended the plan ternekCompany’s matching contribution to the plarbehalf of participants voluntary,
and to make employees participation in the plamn@ry. In June 2006, the Company again amendeplaineto increase the company match
from 50% on the first 6% contributed by an emploieé7% on the first 6% contributed. Participames at all times fully vested in their
contributions. The Company's contribution vestsr@a/@ur-year period at a rate of 25% per year. Chepany retains the right, by action of
the Board of Directors, to amend, modify, or terat@the plan. For the fiscal years ended May 2682®ay 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006, the
Company contributed $352,000, $401,000 and $335,6&pectively, to the Landec Plan.
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14. Business Segment Reporting

Landec operates in three business segments: tiieFFoducts Technology segment, the Commodity Trgadeggment and the
Technology Licensing segment. The Food Productdii@ogy segment markets and packs specialty padkapele and fresh-cut vegetables
that incorporate the BreatheWay specialty packafyinghe retail grocery, club store and food sezsimdustry. In addition, the Food Products
Technology segment sells BreatheWay packagingrtoga for non-vegetable products. The Commodigdirrg segment consist of revenues
generated from the purchase and sale of primatilgle&ecommodity fruit and vegetable products to Asid domestically to Wal-Mart. The
Technology Licensing segment licenses Landec’snpedielntellicoat seed coatings to the farming induand licenses the Company’s
Intelimer polymers for personal care products ateéoindustrial products. Corporate includes caapmgeneral and administrative expenses,
non Food Products Technology interest income amdgamywide income tax expenses. All of the assets ofXbmpany are located within t
United States of America. Prior to fiscal year 2008ndec’s operating segments were Food Produaisnbéogy and Agricultural Seed
Technology. At fiscal year end 2008, the Compamxaeined its segment reporting. As a result, then@my has eliminated the Agricultural
Seed Technology segment and has established thenGdity Trading and the Technology Licensing segmefs a result, the segment
information for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 has lreetassified to conform with the current year sifisation. Included in the Technology
Licensing segment for fiscal years 2007 and 20@ala results of Landec Ag which includes FCD.ddition, the licensing activity for non
food and Ag collaborations is included in the Temlbgy Licensing segment whereas in periods pridistal year 2008 it was included in
Corporate. Corporate amounts include corporatergeaad administrative expenses, non Food Prodiexthnology interest income and
Company-wide income taxes. The Company’s internatisales are primarily to Canada, Taiwan, Indayesid Japan. Operations and
identifiable assets by business segment consistiba dollowing (in thousands):

Food Productt Commodity Technology

Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2008 Technology  Trading Licensing  Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 171,19 $ 60,41¢ $ 6,91¢ $ — $ 238,52
International sales $ 15,70: $ 56,19. $ o $ o $ 71,89
Gross profit $ 27,86( $ 3,44¢ $ 6,91¢ $ — 3 38,22¢
Net income (loss $ 14,84« $ 1,40¢ $ 491¢ $ (7,627 $ 13,54:
Identifiable assets $ 82,577 $ 16,12¢ $ 11,011 $ 40,87: $ 150,58¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 297C $ 20% 214 $ — $ 3,204
Capital expenditures $ 4,051 $ — $ 18¢ $ — $ 4,24(
Interest income $ 522 $ — $ — $ 1,697 $ 2,21¢
Interest expense $ 22 $ — 3 — % — 3 22
Income tax expense $ —$ — 3 — 3 3,35¢ $ 3,35¢
Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2007

Net sales $ 156,47 $ 49,70¢ $ 431¢ $ — $ 210,49¢
International sales $ 12,40¢ $ 46,40¢ $ o $ o $ 58,81:
Gross profit $ 25,06t $ 3,187 $ 4,132 $ — 3 32,38¢
Net income (loss $ 13,15¢ $ 151t $ 19,25 $ (4,749 $ 29,18¢
Identifiable assets $ 81,76¢ $ 12,21¢ $ 3,77¢ $ 43,607 $ 141,36¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 2,665 $ 19 $ 57¢ $ — $ 3,26(
Capital expenditures $ 6,25¢ $ 18 $ 50t $ — $ 6,782
Interest income $ 751 % — $ — $ 1,19¢ $ 1,94¢
Interest expense $ 80 $ — 3 171 $ 0o $ 251
Income tax expense $ —$ — 3 — 3 2,45¢ $ 2,45¢
Fiscal Year Ended May 28, 2006

Net sales $ 136,82¢ $ 57,99( $ 37,137 $ — $ 231,95:
International sales $ 5,68¢ $ 50,337 $ o $ o $ 56,02¢
Gross profit $ 23,641 $ 321z $ 13,191 $ — $ 40,04
Net income (loss $ 10,30¢ $ 1,41¢ $ 1,38¢ $ (4,460 $ 8,651
Identifiable assets $ 73,67¢ $ 9,852 $ 29,66( $ 583¢ $ 119,02!
Depreciation and amortization $ 2,55: $ 19 % 631 $ — 3 3,20¢
Capital expenditures $ 4,26: $ — 3 482 $ — 3 4,74¢
Interest income $ 502 $ — $ — $ 131 $ 632
Interest expense $ 30C $ — $ 152 $ o $ 452



Income tax expense
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15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited qudytezsults of operations for fiscal years 2008, 2@dd 2006 (in thousands, except

for per share amounts):

FY 2008 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2008
Revenues $ 62,65¢ $ 58,96. $ 59,607 $ 57,300 $ 238,52
Gross profit $ 8,97/ $ 8,857 $ 10,74¢ $ 9,651 $ 38,22¢
Net income $ 3,077 $ 3,12t $ 3,96¢ $ 3374 $ 13,54:
Net income per basic she $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.1t $ 0.1 % 0.52
Net income per diluted sha $ 011 % 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 0.5C

FY 2007 1st Quarter 2nd Quarte  3rd Quarter  4th Quartel FY 2007
Revenues $ 51,147 $ 55,19 $ 52,95¢ $ 51,20: $ 210,49¢
Gross profit $ 5,55¢ $ 8,27¢ $ 9,091 $ 9,46: $ 32,38t
Net income $ 14 % 10€ $ 24,64 $ 4,42 $ 29,18¢
Net income per basic she $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 097 $ 017 $ 1.1¢
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.0C $ 0.0C $ 09z $ 0.1¢ $ 1.0%

FY 2006 1st Quarter 2nd Quarte  3rd Quarter  4th Quartel FY 2006
Revenues $ 49,70 $ 53,71 $ 57,24¢ $ 71,287 $ 231,95!
Gross profit $ 6,59( $ 7,08¢ $ 11,41 $ 14,95( $ 40,04
Net (loss) incomi $ (521) $ (1,037) $ 351 % 6,69t $ 8,651
Net (loss)/income per basic shi $ (0.09) $ (0.09) $ 014 % 027 $ 0.3t
Net (loss)/income per diluted sh: $ (0.02) $ 0.0 $ 0.1: $ 02¢ % 0.32
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(b)

Index of Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title
2.1 Purchase Agreement between the Registrant andApih LLC and the Growers listed therein, datedfdsily 3, 2003,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1h® Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datdyg 3, 2003.
2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement between The Lubrizol Gatjpm and the Registrant dated as of October @42 2incorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registsa@urrent Report on Form 8-K dated October 249220
2.3 Purchase Agreement between the Registrant andpih LLC and the Growers listed therein, datedfdsily 3, 2003,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.tho Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datdyg 3, 2003.
3.1 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, incatedrherein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Regnt's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 17, 2007.
3.2 Ninth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatb Registrant, incorporated herein by referencExhibit 3.2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-le (Ro. 33-80723) declared effective on FebruarylB®26.
3.3 Certificate of Determination of Series A Prefer&tdck, incorporated herein by reference to ExI8i8tto the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esh@xtober 31, 1999.
3.4 Certificate of Determination of Series B Prefer&tdck, incorporated herein by reference to Exfatitto the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2001.
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporateddietby reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrathnual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 29, 2005 .
10.2* Form of Option Agreement for 1995 Directors’ St@@gtion Plan, incorporated herein by reference thiltik10.4 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for theéisyear ended October 31, 1996.
10.3 Industrial Real Estate Lease dated March 1, 1988dsn the Registrant and Wayne R. Brown & Bibbitevi, Trustees
of the Wayne R. Brown & Bibbits Brown Living Trugated December 30, 1987, incorporated by referemEshibit 10.6
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on F8fin(File No. 33-80723) declared effective on Fabyul2, 1996.
10.4* Form of Option Agreement for the 1996 Non-Execu®teck Option Plan, as amended, incorporated héseneference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Annual ReportFmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31,6199
10.5* 1996 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, incatgd herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 toRkgistrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded April 29, 2001.
10.6* Form of Option Agreement for 1996 Amended and Redt&tock Option Plan, incorporated herein by esfee to Exhibit

10.17 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on F&f¥Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 1997.
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title

10.7* New Executive Stock Option Plan, incorporated hebsi reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Regisf's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 29,200

10.8* 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, as amendwdyporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3th&Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year esh@xtober 28, 2001.

10.9* Employment Agreement between the Registrant angl G.abteele effective as of January 1, 2006, inoaied herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s CatriReport on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2005.

10.10 Supply Agreement between the Registrant and Apgslirt LC and the Growers listed therein, dated akulyf 3, 2003,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.8 Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K datdyg 3, 2003.

10.11* 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended,rpa@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.53 oRegistrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarteded May 25, 2003.

10.12 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and arpitg Inc. as Borrower, and Wells Fargo Bank, Nagib
Association, dated as of November 1, 2005, incatgalr herein by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to thgi®eant’'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endegéyaber 27, 2005.

10.13# License and research and development agreementdretive Registrant and Air Products and Chemibaisdated Marcl
14, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to Bkhil63 to the Registrant’'s Annual Report on FA®AK for the fiscal
year ended May 28, 200

10.14* 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurReport on Form 8-K
dated October 14, 2005.

10.15* Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2005 Stock InsenPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Ex9i®.2 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Gatdld, 2005.

10.16* Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incoaped herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.66 to the Registrant’s AziriReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended/N8, 2006.

10.17* Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2005 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Exiibi67 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theéisyear ended May 28, 2006.

10.18* Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@X6ck Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by efee to Exhibit
99.5 to the Registrant's Current Report on Formd@ted October 14, 2005.

10.19 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Decembef8,[80and among the Registrant, Landec Ag and AraerSeeds,

Inc., incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBii7D to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8alted December 6,
2006.
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title
10.20 License, Supply and R&D Agreement dated as of Déeerh, 2006 by and among the Registrant, LandeantgMonsant
Company, incorporated herein by reference to EkAibi71 to the Registrant’'s Current Report on F8rkdated
December 6, 2006.
10.21* 2009 Cash Bonus Plan, incorporated herein by neferéo the Registrant’s Current Report on Form @aked July 22,
2008.
10.22 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated CAgpléement between Apio, Inc. and Wells Fargo B&h,., dated
as of September 1, 2007 incorporated herein byarée to Exhibit 10.73 to the Registrant’s Quayt&port on Form 10-
Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 25, 2007.
10.23* Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant aoddias Tompkins dated as of November 29, 199%rpuarated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Regigts Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded October 31,
1999.
10.24* 1999 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optidgreement, incorporated herein by reference tuitktx10.26 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theéisyear ended October 31, 1999.
10.25* 2000 Apio, Inc. Stock Option Plan and form of Optidgreement, incorporated herein by reference tuilktx10.28 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theéisyear ended October 29, 2000.
16.1 Letter from McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, dated June 2808 regarding change in independent registerbticqpaccounting
firm, incorporated herein by reference to Exhilit2Lto the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-Hated June 25,
2008.
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Subsidiary State of Incorporation
Landec Ag, Inc. Delaware
Apio, Inc. Delaware
23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
24.1+ Power of Attorney — See page 78
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb@aes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002
* Represents a management contract or compensatamyoplarrangement required to be filed as an eixtobthis repol
pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form 10-K.
+ Filed herewith.
# Confidential treatment requested as to cefaitions. The term “confidential treatment” and thark “*” as used throughout the

indicated Exhibit means that material has beentechind

-77-




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&6{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiigthas duly caused this Rej
on Form 10K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigneergtinto duly authorized, in the City of Menlo P&kate of California, on Augt
8, 2008.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinner
Vice President of Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persn whose signature appears below hereby constitutesd
appoints Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, andach of them, as his attorney-iffact, with full power of substitution, for him in any
and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments this Report on Form 10K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andther
documents in connection therewith, with the Securiés and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying andoofirming our signatures as
they may be signed by our said attorney to any andll amendments to said Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10- Khas been signed by tf
following persons in the capacities and on the datendicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele President and Chief Executive Officer and Director August 8, 2008

(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinner Vice President of Finance and Administration anie€h August 8, 2008
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accourgi
Officer)

/s/ Nicholas Tompkins
Nicholas Tompkins Chairman of the Board of Apio, Inc. and Director August 8, 2008

/s/ Robert Tobin
Robert Tobin Director August 8, 2008

/s/ Duke K. Bristow, Ph.D
Duke K. Bristow, Ph.D Director August 8, 2008

/s/ Frederick Frank
Frederick Frank Director August 8, 2008

/sl Stephen E. Halprin
Stephen E. Halprin Director August 8, 2008

/s/ Richard S. Schneider, Ph.D
Richard S. Schneider, Ph.D Director August 8, 2008

/sl Kenneth E. Jones
Kenneth E. Jones Director August 8, 2008
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Title

23.1

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Power of Attorney. See page 78.

CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb@aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002.

CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889,;89368, 333-62866, 333-06163,
333-29103, 333-80313, 333-52339, 333-129895) penigito the Non-Plan Stock Option, 1996 Stock Qpftdan, New Executive Stock
Option Plan, 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plarg D&@ctors' Stock Option Plan, 1996 Stock OptitenP1996 Non-Executive Stock
Option Plan, 1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan, 280&ck Incentive Plan, of our reports dated Augus008, with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of Landec Corporation andeffectiveness of internal control over financigbeeting of Landec Corporation, included in
this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endeay\25, 2008.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Fransciso, California
August 7, 2008




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations andcash flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this

report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegah

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataroce with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo# ttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registr's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
function):

@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 8, 200 8

/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operetand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assargegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataroce with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslassire controls and procedures and presentedsimethort our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regmitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo# fias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasti’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a

reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 8, 200 8

/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner

Vice President of Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qugtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perieading May 25, 2008 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiornhe date hereof (the “Reportl),Gary T. Steele, Chief Executive Officer and Riest of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbanes-@xiegf 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejugrements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemmgriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 8, 200 8

/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishededg pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-O&leyof 2002 (subsections (a)
and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18itethStates Code) and is not being filed as patti@form 1K or as a separa
disclosure document.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qugtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perieading May 25, 2008 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinihe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Gregory S.ribler, Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.S§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thea®as-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejugrements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 8, 200 8

/s/ Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinner

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishededg pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-O&letyof 2002 (subsections (a)
and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18jtethStates Code) and is not being filed as patti®form 1K or as a separa
disclosure document.




